City of LeClaire, Iowa
City Council -Committee of the Whole Meeting Agenda
Tuesday, February 22, 2022 – 6:00 p.m.
(immediately following the City Council Meeting)

Council Chambers
325 Wisconsin St
LeClaire, IA
Electronic Attendance Link

I.

Call to Order with Roll Call

II.

Discussion Items:
A. Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Audit Presentation
Bohnsack & Frommelt

B. Cody Road – Phase II – Engineering Services Agreement
Leo Foley, City Engineer – Veenstra & Kimm, Inc.
C. Territorial Bridge Funding
Dennis Bockenstedt, City Administrator

D. 2022-2023 Budget Discussion
Dennis Bockenstedt, City Administrator

III.

E. One Time Funding Uses – ATE, ARPA, Cell Tower Lease
Dennis Bockenstedt, City Administrator

Adjournment

Title VI Notice to the Public
It is the policy of the City of Le Claire to assure full compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. Related statutes and regulations provide that no person
shall on the basis of race, color, national origin, gender, age or disability be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to
discrimination under any program or activity co n d u cte d by the Ci t y. Any person who believes that they are being denied participation in a project, being
denied benefits of a program, or otherwise being discriminated against because of race, color, national origin, gender, age, or disability, may contact the City
Administrator for the City of LeClaire at (563)-289-4242.

January 31, 2022
To the Honorable Mayor
And Members of City Council
City of LeClaire, Iowa
LeClaire, Iowa
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of LeClaire, Iowa for the year ended June 30, 2021.
Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally
accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, as well as certain information related to the
planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our engagement letter to you
dated February 8, 2021. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information
related to our audit.
Significant Audit Findings
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant accounting
policies used by City of LeClaire, Iowa are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. The City adopted
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities; Statement No. 90,
Majority Equity Interest-An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 14 and No. 61, and Statement No. 98, The Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report. The new GASB Statements did not have a significant impact to the City financial
statements.
No other new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during the
year ended June 30, 2021. We noted no transactions entered into by the City during the year for which there is a
lack of authority guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial
statements in the proper period.
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events.
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and
because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most
sensitive estimates affecting the City’s financial statements were:
Other Postemployment Benefit Liability and Related Deferred Inflows of Resources and Deferred
Outflows of Resources: Management’s estimate of the other postemployment benefit liability is
based on an actuarial valuation computed based on employee-related factors such as turnover,
retirement age, and mortality. These factors and an estimated discount rate and rate of return are
based upon historical and general market data.
Depreciable Useful Lives of Capital Assets: Management’s estimate of the useful lives of capital
assets involves judgments and assumptions based on prior experience of estimated useful lives
assigned.
Net Pension Liability and Related Deferred Inflows of Resources and Deferred Outflows of
Resources for the Pension Liability: Management’s estimate of the net pension liability is based on
its proportionate share of the total net pension liability of the Iowa Public Employees Retirement
system cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the state of
Iowa. The liability is based on an actuarial valuation computed based on employee-related factors
such as turnover, retirement age, and mortality. These factors and an estimated discount rate are
based on historical and general market data.
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Unbilled Usage of Utilities: Management’s estimate for unbilled usage of utilities is based on the
prior period usage by the billing cycle or a percentage of the total usage billed subsequent to periodend.
We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the above estimates in determining
that the estimates are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.
Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial statement
users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements were:
The disclosure of commitments and contingencies in Note 10 and 11 to the financial statements
refers to commitments made by the City that will have future financial impact.
The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit,
other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. The
material misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures are attached and were corrected by management.
The uncorrected misstatement of the financial statements is summarized in an attachment. Management has
determined that their effects are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken
as a whole.
Disagreements with Management
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the
auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.
Management Representations
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation
letter dated January 31, 2022, which is attached.
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters,
similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an accounting
principle to the governmental unit’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may
be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us
to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with
other accountants.
Other Audit Findings or Issues
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the governmental unit’s auditors. However, these
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition
to our retention.
We have also issued a report on “Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards.” Our
findings are included in the City’s Financial and Compliance Report.
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Other Matters
We applied certain limited procedures to management’s discussion and analysis, schedule of changes in the City’s
total OPEB liability and related ratios, schedule of the City’s net proportionate share of the pension liability, schedule
of contributions to the pension retirement system and budgetary comparison schedules, which are required
supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the RSI.
We were engaged to report on combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, which accompany the
financial statements but are not RSI. With respect to this supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of
management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the
information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of
preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to
our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying
accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.
Restriction on Use
This information is intended solely for the use of the City Council and management of City of LeClaire, Iowa and is
not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.
Very truly yours,

Moline, Illinois

City of LeClaire, Iowa
325 Wisconsin St
LeClaire, IA 52753

January 31, 2022
Bohnsack & Frommelt LLP
1500 River Drive, Suite 200
Moline, Illinois 61265
This representation letter is provided in connection with your audits of the financial statements of City of LeClaire,
Iowa, which comprise the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information as of June 30, 2021, and the respective changes in
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows for the year then ended, and the disclosures (collectively, the
“financial statements”), for the purpose of expressing opinions as to whether the financial statements are presented
fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (U.S. GAAP).
Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. Items are considered
material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of accounting information that, in light of
surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the judgment of a reasonable person relying on the information
would be changed or influenced by the omission or misstatement. An omission or misstatement that is monetarily
small in amount could be considered material as a result of qualitative factors.
We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of January 31, 2022, the following representations made to
you during your audit.
Financial Statements
1)

We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement letter dated February 8,
2021, including our responsibility for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with U.S. GAAP and for preparation of the supplementary information in accordance with the
applicable criteria.

2)

The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with U.S. GAAP and include all
properly classified funds and other financial information of the primary government required by generally
accepted accounting principles to be included in the financial reporting entity.

3)

We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

4)

We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control to
prevent and detect fraud.

5)

Significant assumptions we used in making accounting estimates, including those measured at fair value, are
reasonable.

6)

All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which U.S. GAAP requires adjustment
or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. No events, including instances of noncompliance, have
occurred subsequent to the balance sheet date and through the date of this letter that would require adjustment
to or disclosure in the aforementioned financial statements or in the schedule of findings and questioned costs.

7)

The effects of uncorrected misstatements are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the
financial statements as a whole for each opinion unit. A list of the uncorrected misstatements is attached to
the representation letter.

8)

The effects of all known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments have been accounted for and
disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

9)

Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the City is contingently liable, if any, have been properly
recorded or disclosed.

Information Provided
10)

We have provided you with:
a) Access to all information, of which we are aware, that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements, such as records, documentation, and other matters and all audit or relevant
monitoring reports, if any, received from funding sources.
b) Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit.
c) Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary to obtain audit
evidence.
d) Minutes of the meetings of City Council or summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes
have not yet been prepared.

11)

All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial
statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards.

12)

We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be
materially misstated as a result of fraud.

13)

We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the entity and involves:
1) Management,
2) Employees who have significant roles in internal control, or
3) Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

14)

We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity’s financial
statements communicated by employees, former employees, regulators, or others.

15)

We have no knowledge of instances of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance with provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, or grant agreements, or abuse, whose effects should be considered when preparing
financial statements.

16)

We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments whose effects
should be considered when preparing the financial statements.

17)

We have disclosed to you the identity of the entity’s related parties and all the related party relationships and
transactions of which we are aware.

Government—specific
18)

There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with, or
deficiencies in, financial reporting practices.

19)

There has been no fraud or suspected fraud or noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements.

20)

We have a process to track the status of audit findings and recommendations.

21)

We have identified to you any previous audits, attestation engagements, and other studies related to the audit
objectives and whether related recommendations have been implemented.

22)

There have been no investigations or legal proceedings that have been initiated with respect to the period
under audit.

23)

We have provided our views on reported findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well as our planned
corrective actions, for the report.

24)

The City has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or classification of assets,
deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and fund balance or net position.

25)

We are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and grant
agreements applicable to us, including tax or debt limits and debt contracts; and legal and contractual
provisions for reporting specific activities in separate funds.

26)

We have appropriately disclosed all information for conduit debt obligations.

27)

There are no instances which have occurred or are likely to have occurred of fraud or noncompliance with
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements that we believe have a material effect on the
financial statements.

28)

There are no violations or possible violations of budget ordinances, laws and regulations (including those
pertaining to adopting, approving, and amending budgets), provisions of contracts and grant agreements, tax
or debt limits, and any related debt covenants whose effects should be considered for disclosure in the
financial statements, or as a basis for recording a loss contingency, or for reporting on noncompliance.

29)

As part of your audit, you assisted with the preparation of the financial statements and disclosures and
proposed adjusting journal entries. We acknowledge our responsibility as it relates to those nonaudit services,
including that we assume all management responsibilities; oversee the services by designating an individual,
preferably within senior management, who possesses suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the
adequacy and results of the services performed; and accept responsibility for the results of the services. We
have reviewed and approved and accepted responsibility for those financial statements and disclosures.

30)

We acknowledge that we have reviewed and approved proposed adjusting journal entries and approve those
entries and accept responsibility for them. The proposed entries are attached. We are in agreement with the
adjusting journal entries you have proposed and they have been posted to the City’s accounts.

31)

The City has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances on such assets nor
has any asset been pledged as collateral.

32)

The City has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would have a material effect on the
financial statements in the event of noncompliance.

33)

There are no component units as well as joint ventures with an equity interest.

34)

The financial statements properly classify all funds and activities in accordance with GASB Statement No.34,
as amended.

35)

All funds that meet the quantitative criteria in GASBS Nos. 34 and 37 for presentation as major are identified
and presented as such and all other funds that are presented as major are particularly important to financial
statement users.

36)

Components of net position (net investment in capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted) and components of
fund balance (nonspendable and restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned) are properly classified and,
if applicable, approved.

37)

Investments, derivative instruments, and land and other real estate held by endowments are properly valued.

38)

Provisions for uncollectible receivables have been properly identified and recorded.

39)

Expenses have been appropriately classified in or allocated to functions and programs in the statement of
activities, and allocations have been made on a reasonable basis.

40)

Revenues are appropriately classified in the statement of activities within program revenues and general
revenues.

41)

Interfund, internal, and intra-entity activity and balances have been appropriately classified and reported.

42)

Deposits and investment securities and derivative instruments are properly classified as to risk and are
properly disclosed.

43)

Capital assets, including infrastructure and intangible assets, are properly capitalized, reported, and, if
applicable, depreciated.

44)

We have appropriately disclosed the City’s policy regarding whether to first apply restricted or unrestricted
resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position is
available and have determined that net position is properly recognized under the policy.

City of LeClaire, Iowa
Proposed Adjusting Journal Entries
Year Ended June 30, 2021
Description

Account

1. Capital Projects Fund-Govt Activities
Buildings - Rec Center
327-757-6550.3
Proceeds from Debt Rec Center
327-757-4820.3
To record payment to Economy Roofing 12/09/20 debited incorrectly to Proceeds.
2. LOSST Fund
Due from other governments
Deferred revenue
To adjust FY21 LOSST true-up estimate to actual.

121-1320
121-2500

Debit

61,710.00
61,710.00

61,710.00
61,710.00

115,527.72
115,527.72

3. General Fund/Governmental Activities
Accounts receivable
001-1230
Auto Traffic Enforcement Fines
001-4765
To record receivable and revenue for ATE fines collected from 6.26-6.30.21

Credit

115,527.72
115,527.72

33,835.00
33,835.00

33,835.00
33,835.00

4. Sewer Fund/Business-type Activities
Deferred Outflows-Pension
Deferred Inflows-Pension
Net Pension Liability
Pension Expense
To adjust IPERS for June 30, 2021.

610-000-1900
610-050-2600
610-050-2510
610-815-6131

36,577.00
6,016.00
42,593.00

11,994.00
30,599.00
42,593.00

5. Sewer Fund/Business-type Activities
Deferred Outflows-OPEB
Deferred Inflows-OPEB
Net OPEB Liability
Health Expense
To adjust OPEB for June 30, 2021

610-000-1901
610-050-2601
610-050-2511
610-815-6132

6,761.00

7,283.00

6. Sewer Fund/Business-type Activities
Depreciation Expense
Accumulated Depreciation Buildings
Accumulated Depreciation Machinery/Equipment
To record FY 21 Depreciation Expense for Buildings & Equipment.

610-815-6360
610-000-1725
610-000-1745

Construction in Progress
Utility Sys. & Structures Expense
Engineering Expense
To record CY CIP for WWTP project in Sewer.

5,129.00
11,890.00

52,683.00

52,683.00
610-1880
610-815-6780
610-815-6407

7. Sewer Fund/Business-type Activities
Utility System
610-000-1760
Utility System
610-000-1760
610-815-6360
Depreciation Expense
610-3950
Retained Earnings
Contributions-Public
610-815-4700
Accumulated Depreciation Utility System
610-000-1765
To record Holst Acres Subdivision that was dedicated to the City & agree Utility System to Reports.
Retained earnings to correct balance for loss on FY20 deletions.

4,607.00
11,890.00

15,172.00
37,511.00
52,683.00

73,944.00

73,944.00

58,610.00
15,334.00
73,944.00

97,050.00
348,257.00
389,943.00
35,701.00

870,951.00

97,050.00
773,901.00
870,951.00

8. Capital Projects/Governmental Activities
Parking-Huckleberry CIP
326-757-6762
Retainage Payable
326-050-2070
Parking-Huckleberry CIP
327-757-6762.1
Retainage Payable
327-050-2070
To record retainage payable for Huckleberry parking lot finished in December 2020 & paid subsequent.

15,935.06

7,601.02
15,935.06

9. General Fund/Governmental Activities
Bad debt expense
013-6404
Allowance for doubtful accounts
013-1225
To record allowance for old restitution claims not probable of collection.

12,417.25
12,417.25

12,417.25
12,417.25

2,543.00
2,543.00

2,543.00
2,543.00

10. Sewer Fund/Business-type Activities
Assessments receivable
Special assessments revenue
To record special assessments receivable to actual from County.

610-1300
610-4600

11. General Fund - Subfund 013 - Damages & Claims
Accounts Receivable
013-000-1230
Reimbursements
013-699-4710
To record receivable for insurance proceeds from ACH fraud incident received in Sept 2021.
12. Capital Projects Fund/Govt Activities
Accounts Payable
327-050-2070
Engineering-Terr E #7154
327-753-6407.9
To correct amount accrued back to 6/30/2021 for Territorial Bridge Inspection, check #65891.
13. Capital Projects/Governmental Activities
Parking-Huckleberry CIP
Retainage Payable
Parking-Huckleberry CIP
Retainage Payable
Parking-Huckleberry CIP
Retainage Payable
Parking-Huckleberry CIP
Retainage Payable
Retainage Payable
Accounts Payable
To correct entry 12 and 8

326-757-6762
326-050-2070
327-757-6762.1
327-050-2070
326-757-6762
326-050-2070
327-757-6762.1
327-050-2070
327-050-2070
327-050-2020

14. FICA / Group Insurance
Due from other funds
Taxes receivable
Taxes receivable
Due to other funds
To reclassify negative taxes receivable

113-000-1330
113-000-1210
114-000-1210
114-050-2100

8,334.04
8,334.04
7,601.02

99,045.00
99,045.00

19,446.57
19,446.57

8,334.04
8,334.04
7,601.02
7,601.02
2,359.90
2,359.90
2,140.10
2,140.10
19,446.57
19,446.57
39,881.63

39,881.63

10,011.60
10,011.60
10,011.60
10,011.60

City of LeClaire, Iowa
Summary of Uncorrected Misstatements
Year Ended June 30, 2021
Description
General Fund/Governmental Activities
Expenditure
Cash and investments
Overstatement of cash and investments
General Fund/Governmental Activities
Public safety expenditure-wages and benefits
Accrued payroll
Understatement of payroll

Debit

$

2,451.00
2,451.00

3,274.00
3,274.00

Credit

$

2,451.00
2,451.00

3,274.00
3,274.00

City of LeClaire, Iowa
Financial and Compliance Report
Year Ended June 30, 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Honorable Mayor
and Members of City Council
City of LeClaire, Iowa
LeClaire, Iowa
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of LeClaire, Iowa, as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.
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Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of LeClaire, Iowa, as of June 30, 2021, and the
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, schedule of changes in the City’s total OPEB
liability and related ratios, schedule of the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for pension
retirement system, and schedule of the City’s contributions for pension retirement system, on pages 4–14
and 55–62 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial
statements, and the other supplementary information are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.
The supplementary information of the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and
other supplementary information are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or
to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary
information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
The City’s basic financial statements for the years ended June 30, 2012 through 2017, which are not
presented herein, were audited by other auditors whose report thereon dated December 18, 2017,
expressed unmodified opinions on the basic financial statements. Their report on the Schedule of
Revenues By Source and Expenditure By Function for the years ended June 30, 2012 through 2017
stated that, in their opinion, such information was fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
basic financial statements as a whole for the years ended June 30, 2012 through 2017 taken as a whole.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 31,
2022, on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

Moline, Illinois
January 31, 2022
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City of LeClaire, Iowa
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2021
It is an honor to present to you the financial picture of the City of LeClaire, Iowa. We offer readers of the
City’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of
LeClaire, Iowa for the year ended June 30, 2021.
Financial Highlights


Revenues of the City’s governmental activities increased 15.6%, or approximately $1,275,293
from fiscal year 2020 to fiscal year 2021.



Revenues of the City’s business-type activities increased 10.9%, or approximately $98,961 from
fiscal year 2020 to fiscal year 2021.



Expenses of the City’s governmental activities decreased 3.4%, or approximately $215,709, in
fiscal year 2021 from fiscal year 2020.



Expenses of the City’s business-type activities decreased 3.4%, or approximately $38,490 in
fiscal year 2021 from fiscal year 2020.



The City’s net position increased 11.5%, or approximately $3,211,189, from June 30, 2020 net
position to June 30, 2021. Of this amount, the net position of the governmental activities
increased $3,347,536 and the net position of the business-type activities decreased $136,347.

Overview of the Financial Statements
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of LeClaire, Iowa’s basic
financial statements. The City’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) governmentwide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements and 3) notes to basic financial statements. This
report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements
themselves.
Government-wide financial statements – The government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the City of LeClaire, Iowa’s finances in a manner similar to a
private-sector business.
The statement of net position presents information on all of the City of LeClaire, Iowa’s assets, deferred
outflows of resources, and deferred inflows of resources and liabilities, with the difference reported as net
position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.
The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses
are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods
(e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).
Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguished functions of the City of LeClaire, Iowa
that are principally supported by taxes (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to
recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities).

4

City of LeClaire, Iowa
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2021
The governmental activities of the City of LeClaire, Iowa include general government, public safety, public
works, culture and recreation and community and economic development. The business-type activities of
the City of LeClaire, Iowa include the sanitary sewer system and stormwater sewer system. This activity
is financed primarily by user charges.
Fund financial statements – A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of LeClaire, Iowa,
like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into two categories:
governmental funds and proprietary funds.
Governmental funds – Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows
and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end
of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financial
requirements.
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.
The City of LeClaire, Iowa maintains ten individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, Tax Increment Financing Fund, Capital
Projects Fund and Debt Service Fund, which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other six
governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of
these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements in the supplementary
information section of this report.
The City adopts an annual appropriated budget which includes all of its funds. A budgetary comparison
schedule has been provided as required supplementary information to demonstrate compliance with this
budget.
Proprietary funds – The City of LeClaire, Iowa maintains one enterprise fund which is used to report the
same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements.
Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only
in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide information for the Sewer Fund, a major
enterprise fund.
Notes to basic financial statements – The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.
Other information – In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report
also presents certain required supplementary information. Required supplementary information includes
(1) a budgetary comparison schedule; (2) the schedule of changes in the City’s total OPEB liability and
related ratios, and (3) the City’s proportionate share of net pension liability and related pension
contributions. The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental
funds are presented immediately following the notes to basic financial statements and the required
supplementary information.
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Government-Wide Financial Analysis
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. The City’s total net position has increased from a year ago. Table 1 reflects total net position of
$31,173,915 which represents an increase of $3,211,189 from 2020.
Table 1 - City of LeClaire's Net Position
Governmental Governmental Business-Type Business-Type
Activities
Activities
Activities
Activities
June
June
June
June
2021
2021
2020
2020
Current and other
assets
Capital assets
Total assets
Total deferred
outflows of
resources
Noncurrent
liabilities
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Total deferred inflows
of resources
Net position:
Net investment in
capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total net
position

Total
June
2021

Total
June
2020

$ 17,648,150
30,106,831
47,754,981

$ 10,026,244
28,122,155
38,148,399

$ 2,009,846
14,477,793
16,487,639

$ 1,844,188
14,749,425
16,593,613

$ 19,657,996
44,584,624
64,242,620

$ 11,870,432
42,871,580
54,742,012

275,963

260,956

58,506

60,009

334,469

320,965

22,959,397
3,953,290
26,912,687

17,367,826
3,327,564
20,695,390

220,729
322,709
543,438

185,523
303,481
489,004

23,180,126
4,275,999
27,456,125

17,553,349
3,631,045
21,184,394

5,924,059

5,867,303

22,990

48,554

5,947,049

5,915,857

11,694,427
868,823
2,630,948

10,210,359
1,023,158
613,145

14,477,793
1,501,924

14,749,425
1,366,639

26,172,220
868,823
4,132,872

24,959,784
1,023,158
1,979,784

$ 15,194,198

$ 11,846,662

$ 15,979,717

$ 16,116,064

$ 31,173,915

$ 27,962,726

Of the City of LeClaire’s net position, 84.0 percent reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land,
construction-in-progress, buildings and improvements, infrastructure, machinery and equipment); less
depreciation and any related debt used to acquire those assets that are still outstanding. The City of
LeClaire uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not
available for future spending. Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related
debt, it should be noted the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources
since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.
A restricted portion of the City’s net position (2.8 percent as of June 30, 2021) represents resources that
are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net
position, $4,132,872 may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.
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At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of LeClaire, Iowa is able to report positive balances in all
three categories of net position. The same situation held true for the prior fiscal year.
Table 2 highlights the City’s revenues and expenses for the year ended June 30, 2021. These two main
components are subtracted to yield the change in net position. This table utilizes the full accrual method
of accounting. Revenue is further divided into two major components: program revenue and general
revenue. Program revenue is defined as charges for sales and services, operating grants and
contributions and capital grants and contributions. General revenue includes taxes, investment income
and other unrestricted revenue sources.
The City’s total net position increased by $3,211,189 during the year ended June 30, 2021. The
governmental activities’ net position increased by $3,347,536. Total governmental activities revenue
increased $1,275,293. The increase was primarily from an increase in charges for services of $529,425.
The increase is due to the new auto traffic enforcement fees of approximately $556,000. Total
governmental activities expenses decreased $215,709, general government increased $83,668 and
public works decreased $495,563. Capital grants increased $398,863 for governmental activities and
$97,050 in business type activities due to developer donations.
The total business-type activities’ net position decreased by $136,347. The business-type activities net
position decreased due to charges for services being less than cost of providing sewer services.

7

City of LeClaire, Iowa
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2021
Table 2 - City of LeClaire's Changes in Net Position
Governmental Governmental Business-Type Business-Type
Activities
Activities
Activities
Activities
2021
2021
2020
2020
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants and
contributions
Capital grants and
contributions
General revenues:
Property taxes levied for:
General Purpose
Debt Service
Tax increment
financing
Hotel/motel tax
Local option sales tax
Other taxes
Revenue in lieu of taxes
Investment earnings
Gain on sale of
capital assets
Total revenues
Expenses:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Community and
economic
development
Interest on long- term
debt
Sewer
Total expenses
Excess
(deficiency)
before transfers
Transfers
Change in
net position
Net position, beginning
Net position, ending

$ 1,189,174

$

659,749

$

899,726

$

Total
2021

Total
2020

872,908

$ 2,088,900

$ 1,532,657

797,282

646,140

-

-

797,282

646,140

398,863

-

97,050

-

495,913

-

1,866,431
504,406

1,832,871
459,894

-

-

1,866,431
504,406

1,832,871
459,894

3,515,220
189,607
827,034
22,796
64,293
74,313

3,521,299
189,607
629,237
86,246
46,454
124,954

7,487

32,284

3,515,220
189,607
827,034
22,796
64,293
81,800

3,521,299
189,607
629,237
86,246
46,454
157,238

22,325

-

-

110

22,325

110

9,471,744

8,196,451

1,004,263

905,302

10,476,007

9,101,753

710,178
1,149,815
1,165,978
470,975

626,510
1,141,879
1,661,541
469,183

-

-

710,178
1,149,815
1,165,978
470,975

626,510
1,141,879
1,661,541
469,183

1,803,475

1,823,249

-

-

1,803,475

1,823,249

841,846
6,142,267

635,614
6,357,976

1,122,551
1,122,551

1,161,041
1,161,041

841,846
1,122,551
7,264,818

635,614
1,161,041
7,519,017

3,329,477

1,838,475

(118,288)

(255,739)

3,211,189

1,582,736

18,059

15,832

(18,059)

(15,832)

-

-

3,347,536

1,854,307

(136,347)

(271,571)

3,211,189

1,582,736

11,846,662

9,992,355

16,116,064

16,387,635

27,962,726

26,379,990

$15,194,198

$11,846,662

$ 15,979,717

$ 16,116,064

$ 31,173,915

$ 27,962,726
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Table 3 below discloses cost of services for governmental activities.
The total cost of services column contains all costs related to the programs and the net cost column
shows how much of the total amount is not covered by program revenues. Succinctly put, net costs are
costs that must be covered by local taxes or other general revenue or transfers.
Table 3 - Governmental Activities

Programs
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Community and economic development
General government
Interest on long-term debt
Total

Total Cost of
Services
2021
$ 1,149,815
1,165,978
470,975
1,803,475
710,178
841,846
$ 6,142,267

Net Cost of
Services
2021

Total Cost of
Services
2020
$ 1,141,879
1,661,541
469,183
1,823,249
626,510
635,614
$ 6,357,976

$

$

(334,071)
167,093
(426,527)
(1,759,424)
(562,173)
(841,846)
(3,756,948)

Net Cost of
Services
2020
$

$

(1,026,133)
(778,162)
(414,243)
(1,798,252)
(399,683)
(635,614)
(5,052,087)

Net cost of services is 61.2 percent of total cost of services for the year ended June 30, 2021 and 79.5
percent for the year ended June 30, 2020. As expected, this reflects a continued reliance on taxes and
other general revenue sources to fund the cost of services.
.
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Governmental Activities
The graphs below show the percentage of the total governmental activities revenues allocated by each
revenue type for 2020 and 2021.

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities
2021
Charges for services
Operating grants and
contributions

0%

1%

Capital grants and
contributions

13%

12%

8%

Property taxes

4%
37%

Tax Increment
Financing

25%

Other taxes
Investment earnings
Gain on sale of capital
assets

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities
2020

Charges for services

2%
11%

8%

0%

8%

Capital grants and
contributions
28%

43%

Operating grants and
contributions

Property taxes
Tax Increment Financing
Other taxes
Investment earnings
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Business-type activities: For the year ended June 30, 2021, business-type activities decreased the City
of LeClaire’s net position by $136,347.
Total business-type activities’ revenue for the fiscal year was $1,044,263. All but $104,537 of this revenue
was generated for specific business-type activity. The graph below shows a comparison between the
business-type activity expenditures and revenues for 2021 and 2020.

$1,500,000

$1,122,551

$2,000,000

$1,004,263

Expenses and Revenues - Business-Type Activities
2021

Expense
Revenue

$1,000,000
$500,000
$Sewer Fund

$1,500,000

$905,302

$2,000,000

$1,161,041

Expenses and Revenues - Business-Type Activities
2020

$1,000,000
$500,000
$Sewer Fund
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds
As noted earlier, the City of LeClaire, Iowa uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements.
Governmental funds – The focus of the City of LeClaire, Iowa’s governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such information is
useful in assessing the City’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve
as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for discretionary use as they represent the
portion of fund balance which has not yet been limited to use for a particular purpose by either an external
party, the City of LeClaire itself, or a group or individual that has been delegated authority to assign
resources for use for particular purposes by the City of LeClaire’s City Council.
As of June 30, 2021, the City of LeClaire, Iowa’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $10,598,447, an increase of $7,130,093 from June 30, 2020. The City’s unassigned balance
was $2,502,547 as of June 30, 2021 compared to $1,559,751 as of June 30, 2020. The remainder of the
fund balance is either nonspendable, restricted, committed, or assigned to indicate that it is 1) not in
spendable form - $80,579, 2) legally required to be maintained intact or restricted for particular purposes
by enabling legislation or by third parties - $7,964,552 3) committed for particular purposes - $48,201, or
4) assigned for a particular purpose - $2,568.
The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned
fund balance of the General Fund was $2,530,049 while total fund balance increased by $973,958. As a
measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and
total fund balance to general fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents approximately
113.9 percent of total General Fund expenditures for 2021 and 70.4 percent for 2020, while total fund
balance represents approximately 116.5 percent of General Fund expenditures compared to 84.1 percent
in the prior year.
The General Fund’s revenue sources of property taxes, local option sales tax, utility replacement excise
tax, hotel/motel tax and other taxes contribute 55.0 percent of revenue used to fund the general purposes
of the City including police, streets and parks. These revenue sources have a direct correlation with the
health of the economy. Another 16.0 percent of the City’s General Fund revenues were derived from
charges for services.
The fund balance of the City’s General Fund increased by $973,958 during the current fiscal year. The
General Fund revenues increased $155,066. The General Fund expenditures decreased $5,114.
The Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Fund accounts for revenues collected to be used for economic
purposes. Fund balance increased $48,751 from $469,499 in 2020 to $518,250 in 2021. The increase in
TIF fund balance was due to taxes exceeding the payments to developers and required transfer out for
debt services.
The Debt Service Fund balance increased $50,031 from $23,464 in 2020 to $73,495 in 2021. The Debt
Service Fund continues to service debt as it becomes due. In the current year, principal payments of
$8,522,017 were made on outstanding general obligation bonds and notes.
The Capital Projects Fund balance increased by $5,936,352 from $730,562 in 2020 to $6,666,914 in
2021. The increase is due to issuance of G.O. Refunding Bonds.
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Proprietary funds – The City of LeClaire’s proprietary fund provides the same type of information found
in the government-wide financial statements but in more detail.
The Enterprise Sewer Fund had a change in net position of ($136,347). The net position of the Sewer
Fund was $15,979,717 compared to $16,116,064 as of June 30, 2020. The decrease is due to increasing
operating costs which includes depreciation expense of $442,626 exceeding charges for services.
Charges for services remained stable at $887,062 in 2021 compared to $862,602 in 2020. Cost of sales
and service of $679,925 represents a decrease of $9,933 (2.5%) from 2020 cost of sales and services of
$689,858.
Budgetary Highlights
Formal and legal budgetary control is based on nonmajor classes of disbursements known as functions,
not by fund or fund type.
During the year, budget amendments increased budgeted expenditures by $5,331,778. During the year,
expenditures for all functions were less than budgeted by $3,636,859, however the City over expended
the community and economic development, debt service and business-type function.
Capital Asset and Debt Administration
Capital assets - The City of LeClaire’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and businesstype activities as of June 30, 2021, amounts to $44,584,624 (net of accumulated depreciation). This
investment in capital assets includes land, construction-in-progress, buildings and improvements,
machinery and equipment, and infrastructure. Major capital asset events during the year included various
street reconstruction and improvements projects such as Huckleberry Park, and renovations to the police
department.
City of LeClaire's Capital Assets
Governmental Activities
2021
2020
Land
Land, right of way
Construction in progress
Buildings and improvements
Equipment and vehicles
Infrastructure, road network
Infrastructure, other
Accumulated depreciation
Total

$

$

833,620 $
106,403
4,894,212
5,461,196
4,425,991
29,636,123
414,861
(15,665,575)
30,106,831 $

Business-Type
2021
2020

702,770 $
106,403
3,930,560
4,642,732
4,092,660
29,149,158
269,761
(14,771,889)
28,122,155 $

85,590 $
78,190
491,091
917,030
17,961,719
(5,055,827)
14,477,793 $

85,590 $
4,246
491,091
917,030
17,864,669
(4,613,201)
14,749,425 $

Total
2021
919,210 $
106,403
4,972,402
5,952,287
5,343,021
29,636,123
18,376,580
(20,721,402)
44,584,624 $

2020
788,360
106,403
3,934,806
5,133,823
5,009,690
29,149,158
18,134,430
(19,385,090)
42,871,580

Additional information on the City of LeClaire’s capital assets can be found in Note 3 to the basic financial
statements.
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Debt - As of June 30, 2021, the City of LeClaire, Iowa had general obligation bonds/notes payable and
capital lease purchase agreement totaling $24,756,249 compared to $19,153,266 as of June 30, 2020.
The City paid $8,522,017 in principal payments and $764,617 in interest payments.
Table 5 - Outstanding Debt
Governmental Activities
2020
2021
General obligation bonds/notes
Capital lease purchase
agreement
Total

Business-Type Activities
2020
2021

Total
2020

2021

$

24,530,000

$

18,877,000

$

-

$

-

$

24,530,000

$

18,877,000

$

226,249
24,756,249

$

276,266
19,153,266

$

-

$

-

$

226,249
24,756,249

$

276,266
19,153,266

Additional information about the City’s long-term debt can be found in Note 4 to the basic financial
statements.
As discussed in Note 5 of the basic financial statements, the City has agreed to rebate incremental taxes
paid by the developers in exchange for various construction projects. The remaining principal balances
on these rebate agreements are potential liabilities, in addition to the general obligation bonds and notes
detailed in Note 4 of the basic financial statements. The outstanding balances at June 30, 2021, amounts
paid during the year ended June 30, 2021, and the amounts due within one year for these obligations are
as follows:

Balances as of
June 30, 2021

Amounts Paid
During the
Year Ended
June 30, 2021

Rebate agreements

$

16,372,334

$

1,646,640

$

1,630,585

General Obligation Bonds and Notes

$

24,530,000

$

8,472,000

$

2,690,000

Amounts Due
Within
One Year

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates


Real property assessed values have continued to rise with January 1, 2020 valuation of
$496,421,822 for fiscal year 2021 taxes.



The City’s 2022 fiscal year budgeted expenditures are $16,343,075.



As the General Fund is to a significant percent funded by property taxes and other taxes, the City
continues to encourage new development that supports these revenue sources.

Requests for Information
These financial statements and discussions are designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors and
creditors with a complete disclosure of the City’s finances and to demonstrate a high degree of
accountability for the public dollars entrusted to us. If you have questions about this report or need
additional information, please contact the City Administrator at (563) 289-4242, via email at
dbockenstedt@leclaireiowa.gov or at 325 Wisconsin Street, LeClaire, Iowa 52753.
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Governmental
Activities
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:
Property taxes
Tax increment financing
Customer accounts
Special assesments
Due from other governments
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Restricted assets,
Cash and investments
Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation)
Total noncurrent assets

$

Total assets
Deferred outflows of resources:
OPEB related deferred outflows
Pension related deferred outflows
Total deferred outflows of resources
Total assets and deferred
outflows of resources

$

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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10,921,905

Primary Government
Business-Type
Activities
$

1,864,181

Total
$

12,786,086

2,792,960
3,082,423
261,434
279
369,724
51,837
28,742

111,645
25,175
4,859
3,986

2,792,960
3,082,423
373,079
25,454
369,724
56,696
32,728

138,846
17,648,150

2,009,846

138,846
19,657,996

5,834,235
24,272,596
30,106,831

163,780
14,314,013
14,477,793

5,998,015
38,586,609
44,584,624

47,754,981

16,487,639

64,242,620

56,158
219,805
275,963

15,949
42,557
58,506

72,107
262,362
334,469

48,030,944

$

16,546,145

$

64,577,089

Governmental
Activities
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources
and Net Position
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Salaries and benefits payable
Accrued interest payable
Compensated absences
Customer deposits
Capital lease purchase agreement
General obligation bonds/notes
Total current liabilities

$

Noncurrent liabilities:
Capital lease purchase agreement
General obligation bonds/notes
Net OPEB liability
Net pension liability
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources:
OPEB related deferred inflows
Pension related deferred inflows
Unavailable revenue, property taxes
Unavailable revenue, tax increment financing
Total deferred inflows of resources
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Development TIF
Debt service
Capital projects
Employee benefits
Special levies
Unrestricted
Total net position
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and net position

$
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965,625
23,227
52,415
101,259
68,256
52,508
2,690,000
3,953,290

Primary Government
Business-Type
Activities

76,240
30,478
215,991
322,709

1,041,865
23,227
52,415
131,737
284,247
52,508
2,690,000
4,275,999

173,741
22,121,183
131,137
533,336
22,959,397

40,097
180,632
220,729

173,741
22,121,183
171,234
713,968
23,180,126

26,912,687

543,438

27,456,125

50,988
20,914
2,780,117
3,072,040
5,924,059

16,921
6,069
22,990

67,909
26,983
2,780,117
3,072,040
5,947,049

11,694,427

14,477,793

26,172,220

518,250
73,495
41,885
139,405
95,788
2,630,948
15,194,198

1,501,924
15,979,717

518,250
73,495
41,885
139,405
95,788
4,132,872
31,173,915

48,030,944

$

Total

$

16,546,145

$

64,577,089

City of LeClaire, Iowa
Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2021

Charges for
Sales and
Services

Expenses

Program Revenues
Operating
Grants and
Contributions

Capital
Grants and
Contributions

Primary Government
Governmental activities:
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Community and economic
development
General government
Interest on long-term debt
Total governmental activities

$

Business-type activities:
Sewer
Total primary government

$

1,149,815
1,165,978
470,975

$

651,478
375,135
30,183

$

164,266
559,073
14,265

$

398,863
-

1,803,475
710,178
841,846
6,142,267

44,051
88,327
1,189,174

59,678
797,282

398,863

1,122,551

899,726

-

97,050

7,264,818

$

2,088,900

$

General Revenues
Property taxes levied for:
General purposes
Debt service
Tax increment financing
Hotel/motel tax
Sales tax
Other taxes
Revenue in lieu of taxes
Investment earnings
Gain on the sale of capital assets
Transfers
Total general revenues and transfers
Change in net position
Net position, beginning of year
Net position, end of year
See Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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797,282

$

495,913

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position
Primary Government
Governmental
Business-Type
Activities
Activities
Total

$

(334,071) $
167,093
(426,527)
(1,759,424)
(562,173)
(841,846)
(3,756,948)

$

-

-

$

-

(334,071)
167,093
(426,527)
(1,759,424)
(562,173)
(841,846)
(3,756,948)

(125,775)

(125,775)

(3,756,948)

(125,775)

(3,882,723)

1,866,431
504,406
3,515,220
189,607
827,034
22,796
64,293
74,313
22,325
18,059
7,104,484

7,487
(18,059)
(10,572)

1,866,431
504,406
3,515,220
189,607
827,034
22,796
64,293
81,800
22,325
7,093,912

3,347,536

(136,347)

3,211,189

11,846,662
15,194,198

$

16,116,064
15,979,717

$

27,962,726
31,173,915
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City of LeClaire, Iowa
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2021

Assets
Cash and investments
Receivables, net of allowance:
Property taxes
TIF financing
Customer accounts
Special assessments
Due from other governments
Due from other funds
Inventories
Prepaid items
Restricted, cash and investments
Total assets
Liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and fund balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Salaries and benefits payable
Customer deposits
Due to other funds
Total liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources, unavailable revenue:
Property taxes
Tax increment financing
Other
Total deferred inflows of resources
Fund balances:
Nonspendable:
Inventories
Prepaid items
Restricted:
Debt service
Tax increment financing
Capital projects
Special levies
Road use tax
Employee benefits
Donor purposes, capital
Committed, nuisance abatement
Assigned, library
Unassigned
Total fund balances
Total liabilities, deferred inflow of
resources and fund balances

$

$

$

$

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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General
2,553,165

Tax
Increment
Financing
$
507,867

1,559,258
259,247
279
118,265
60,723
1,909
28,138
138,846
4,719,830

3,082,423
3,590,290

90,914
21,576
68,256
142,162
322,908

$

$

-

Debt
Service
71,171

$

$

$

1,181,844
1,253,015

-

1,551,423
1,551,423

3,072,040
3,072,040

1,179,520
1,179,520

1,909
28,138

-

-

95,788
138,846
48,201
2,568
2,530,049
2,845,499

518,250
518,250

73,495
73,495

4,719,830

$

3,590,290

$

1,253,015

$

$

$

Capital
Projects
7,535,859

Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds
$
253,843

7,535,859

51,858
2,187
251,459
119,524
49,928
604
729,403

868,945
868,945

$

$

2,792,960
3,082,423
261,434
279
369,724
180,247
51,837
28,742
138,846
$ 17,828,397

$

965,625
23,227
68,256
180,247
1,237,355

-

49,174
140,438
189,612

2,780,117
3,072,040
140,438
5,992,595

-

49,928
604

51,837
28,742

6,666,914
6,666,914
$

5,766
1,651
38,085
45,502

Total
10,921,905

$

7,535,859

246,307
85,547
139,405
(27,502)
494,289
$

729,403

73,495
518,250
6,913,221
95,788
85,547
139,405
138,846
48,201
2,568
2,502,547
10,598,447
$ 17,828,397
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City of LeClaire, Iowa
Reconciliation of Total Governmental Fund Balances
to Net Position of Governmental Activities
June 30, 2021

Total governmental fund balances

$

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
net position are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

10,598,447

30,106,831

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period
expenditures and, therefore, are reported as unavailable in the funds

140,438

Accrued interest payable on long-term liablities is not due and payable
in the current year and, therefore, is not reported as a liability in the
governmental funds.

(52,415)

Pension and OPEB related deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources are not due and payable in the current year
and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds, as
follows:
OPEB related deferred outflows of resources
OPEB related deferred inflows of resources
Pension related deferred outflows of resources
Pension related deferred inflows of resources
Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and
payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in
the funds:
General obligation bonds/notes
Premium on long-term debt
Capital lease
Compensated absences
Net OPEB liability
Net pension liability

56,158
(50,988)
219,805
(20,914)

204,061

(24,530,000)
(281,183)
(226,249)
(101,259)
(131,137)
(533,336)

(25,803,164)
$

Net position of governmental activities
See Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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15,194,198

City of LeClaire, Iowa
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2021

Tax
Increment
Financing

General
Revenues:
Property taxes
Tax increment financing
Other taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Use of money and property
Fines, Fees and Miscellaneous
Total revenues

$

1,406,244
260,470
15,930
192,412
486,331
22,230
649,355
3,032,972

$

3,515,220
47,880
4,710
11,600
3,579,410

Debt
Service
$

504,406
6,266
5,792
533
516,997

Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Community and economic development
General government
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal
Interest, issuance costs and fiscal charges
Total expenditures
Revenues over (under) expenditures

748,180
387,313
329,404
156,294
599,684
-

1,646,640
-

2,220,875
812,097

1,646,640
1,932,770

8,522,017
764,617
9,286,634
(8,769,637)

Other financing sources (uses):
Issuance of long term debt
Premium on long-term debt
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)

22,325
139,536
161,861

(1,884,019)
(1,884,019)

6,175,000
75,255
2,569,413
8,819,668

Net change in fund balances

973,958

Fund balances, beginning
Fund balances, ending

$

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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1,871,541
2,845,499

-

48,751
$

469,499
518,250

50,031
$

23,464
73,495

Capital
Projects
$

$

35,200
46,840
1,080
83,120

Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds
$

460,187
696,556
2,068
563,627
28
22,782
1,745,248

Total
$

2,370,837
3,515,220
963,292
17,998
844,911
486,359
74,313
684,817
8,957,747

2,013,871

252,786
558,297
82,930
416
58,687
-

1,000,966
945,610
412,334
1,803,350
658,371
2,013,871

110,962
2,124,833
(2,041,713)

953,116
792,132

8,522,017
875,579
16,232,098
(7,274,351)

7,950,000
163,805
(135,740)
7,978,065

(671,131)
(671,131)

14,125,000
239,060
22,325
2,708,949
(2,690,890)
14,404,444

5,936,352

121,001

7,130,093

730,562
6,666,914

373,288
494,289

3,468,354
$ 10,598,447

$
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City of LeClaire, Iowa
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances of
Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2021

Net change in fund balances - governmental funds

$

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while
governmental activities report depreciation expense to allocate those
expenditures over the life of the assets. Capital outlay expenditures
exceeded depreciation expense in the current year, as follows:
Capital contributions
Capital outlay
Depreciation expense
Gain on sale of capital assets
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Revenue in the statement of activities that does not provide current
financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds:
Other
Local option sales tax
Proceeds from issuing long-term liabilities provide current financial
resources to governmental funds, but issuing debt increases long-term
liabilities in the Statement of Net Position. Repayment of long-term
liabilities is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position.
Issuance of long-term debt
Repayment of principal
Repayment of capital lease
Accrued interest on long-term debt
Premium on long term debt
Amortization of premium on long-term debt
Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require
the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported
as expenditures in the governmental funds, as follows:
Compensated absences
Pension expense and related deferred inflows and outflows
OPEB expense and related deferred inflows and outflows
Change in net position of governmental activities
See Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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$

7,130,093

398,863
2,593,342
(1,007,529)
22,325
(22,325)

1,984,676

(47,629)
140,438

92,809

(14,125,000)
8,472,000
50,017
(3,932)
(239,060)
37,665

(5,808,310)

(4,544)
(32,588)
(14,600)

(51,732)
$

3,347,536

City of LeClaire, Iowa
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Fund
June 30, 2021

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts:
Customer accounts and unbilled usage
Special assessments
Prepaid expenses
Inventories
Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
Total noncurrent assets

Enterprise Fund
Sewer
$

1,864,181
111,645
25,175
3,986
4,859
2,009,846
163,780
14,314,013
14,477,793
16,487,639

Total assets
Deferred outflows of resources:
OPEB related deferred outflows
Pension related deferred outflows
Total deferred outflows of resources

15,949
42,557
58,506

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources
Liabilities and net position
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Compensated absences
Customer deposits
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Net OPEB liability
Net pension liability
Total noncurrent liabilities

$

16,546,145

$

76,240
30,478
215,991
322,709
40,097
180,632
220,729
543,438

Total liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources:
OPEB related deferred inflows
Pension related deferred inflows
Total deferred inflows of resources

16,921
6,069
22,990

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted
Total net position

14,477,793
1,501,924
15,979,717

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position
See Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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$

16,546,145

City of LeClaire, Iowa
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Proprietary Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2021

Enterprise Fund
Sewer
Operating revenues:
Charges for services
Special assessments
Miscellaneous
Total operating revenues

$

Operating expenses:
Cost of sales and services
Depreciation
Total operating expenses

887,062
3,343
9,321
899,726
679,925
442,626
1,122,551
(222,825)

Operating (loss)
Nonoperating revenues:
Investment earnings
Total nonoperating revenues

7,487
7,487
(215,338)

(Loss) before transfers and capital contributions
Capital contributions
Transfers (out)
Total transfers and capital contributions

97,050
(18,059)
78,991
(136,347)

Change in net position
Total net position, beginning of year
Total net position, end of year

$

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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16,116,064
15,979,717

City of LeClaire, Iowa
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2021

Enterprise Fund
Sewer
Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from users
Receipts from other revenues
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Net cash provided by operating activities

$

885,094
9,321
(352,413)
(303,460)
238,542

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfers to other funds
Net cash (used in) noncapital financing activities

(18,059)
(18,059)

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition of capital assets
Net cash (used in) capital and related financing activities

(73,944)
(73,944)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received
Net cash provided by investing activities

7,487
7,487
154,026

Increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning of year
End of year

$

Reconciliation of operating (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:
Operating (loss)
Adjustment to reconcile operating (loss) to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation
Change in assets and liabilities:
Receivables
Special assessments
Prepaid expenses
Inventories
Accounts payable
Compensated absences
Customer deposits
Net OPEB liability and related deferrals
Net pension liability and related deferrals
Net cash provided by operating activities
Schedule of noncash items:
Capital and related financing activities, developer contributions of capital assets
See Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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$

1,710,155
1,864,181
(222,825)

442,626

$

(12,253)
519
1,386
(1,284)
6,851
5,954
6,423
5,129
6,016
238,542

$

97,050

City of LeClaire, Iowa
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2021
Note 1. Nature of Operations, Reporting Entity, Basis of Presentation, Measurement Focus and
Basis of Accounting and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Nature of operations:
The City of LeClaire, Iowa (City) is a political subdivision of the State of Iowa located in Scott County. It
was first incorporated in 1834 and operates under the Home Rule provisions of the Constitution of Iowa.
The City operates under the Mayor-Council form of government with the Mayor and Council Members
elected on a non-partisan basis. The City of LeClaire, Iowa provides numerous services to citizens,
including public safety, public works, culture and recreation, community and economic development and
general government services. It also provides sewer utilities.
The financial statement of the City of LeClaire, Iowa have been prepared in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.
Reporting entity:
For financial reporting purposes, the City of LeClaire, Iowa’s basic financial statements have included all
funds, organizations, agencies, boards, commissions and authorities for which the City is financially
accountable. The City has also considered all potential organizations for which the nature and
significance of their relationship with the City are such that exclusion would cause the City’s financial
statements to be misleading or incomplete. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America require the financial reporting entity include (1) the primary government, (2) organizations for
which the primary government is financially accountable and (3) other organizations for which the nature
and significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause
the reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.
Based on the aforementioned criteria, the City is considered a primary government and there are no other
organizations or agencies whose financial statements should be combined and presented with the basic
financial statements.
Jointly Governed Organizations: The City participates in several jointly governed organizations that
provide goods or services to the citizenry of the City but do not meet the criteria of a joint venture since
there is no ongoing financial interest or responsibility by the participating governments. City officials are
members of or appoint representatives to the following boards and commissions: Scott County
Assessor’s Conference Board, Scott County Emergency Management Commission, Scott County Area
Solid Waste Management Commission, and Bi-State Regional Commission. Financial transactions of
these organizations are not included in the City’s financial statements.
Basis of presentation:
Government-wide and fund financial statements: The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the
statement of net position and the statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary
activities of the City. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these
statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees
and charges for support.
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City of LeClaire, Iowa
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2021
Note 1. Nature of Operations, Reporting Entity, Basis of Presentation, Measurement Focus and
Basis of Accounting and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function are
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific
function. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly
benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given function and 2) grants and contributions
that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function. Taxes and
other items not included among program revenues are reported as general revenues.
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. The focus of
fund financial statements is on major funds. Major individual governmental funds and major individual
enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. Nonmajor funds are
aggregated and presented in a single column.
Fund accounting: The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is
considered to be a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for by
providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts which comprise its assets, liabilities, reserves, fund
balance/net position, revenues and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. The City has the following
funds:
Governmental fund types: Governmental fund types are those funds through which most governmental
functions typically are financed. Governmental fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses and balances
of current financial resources. Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental funds
according to the purpose for which they may or must be used; current liabilities are assigned to the fund
from which they are paid; and the difference between governmental fund assets and liabilities, the fund
equity, is referred to as “fund balance.” The measurement focus is upon determination of charges in
financial position, rather than upon net income determination. The following are the City’s major
governmental funds:
General Fund: The General Fund is the government’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
Tax Increment Financing Fund: The Tax Increment Financing Fund is a special revenue fund used to
account for the revenue collected to be used for economic and community development purposes.
Debt Service Fund: The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for and
the payment of, principal and interest on the City’s general obligation and tax increment financing longterm debt.
Capital Projects Fund: The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for the acquisition or construction of
major capital improvements.
The other governmental funds of the City are considered nonmajor and are as follows:
Special Revenue Funds: Are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are
legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.
Road Use Tax Fund: A special revenue fund used to account for road use tax collected and remitted by
the State.
Workers’ Compensation Fund: A special revenue fund used to account for the workers compensation
insurance program.
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City of LeClaire, Iowa
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2021
Note 1. Nature of Operations, Reporting Entity, Basis of Presentation, Measurement Focus and
Basis of Accounting and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Employees’ Retirement FICA/IPERS Fund: To account for tax levies restricted for the employer portion of
the retirement contribution.
Group Insurance Fund: To account for a tax levy which is to be used for the purpose of the City’s
insurance program.
Emergency Fund: To account for a tax levy to be used for the purpose of emergency services.
Local Option Sales Tax Fund: To account for the local option sales tax collected and remitted by the
state to be used for capital projects.
Proprietary fund types: Proprietary fund types are used to account for a government’s ongoing
organizations and activities which are similar to those often found in the private sector. The
measurement focus is upon income determination, financial position and cash flows.
Enterprise Funds: Are used to account for those operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business or where the City has decided that the determination of revenues earned, costs
incurred and/or net income is necessary for management accountability.
The City reports the following major enterprise fund:
The Sewer Fund is used to account for the operation and maintenance of the City’s wastewater
treatment and sanitary sewer system and storm water sewer system.
Measurement focus and basis of accounting
The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Property tax is recognized as revenue in the year for which it is levied. Grants and similar items are
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been
satisfied.
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days after year end.
Property tax, including tax increment financing, local option sales tax, intergovernmental revenues
(shared revenues, grants and reimbursements from other governments) and interest are considered to be
susceptible to accrual. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when
cash is received by the City.
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City of LeClaire, Iowa
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2021
Note 1. Nature of Operations, Reporting Entity, Basis of Presentation, Measurement Focus and
Basis of Accounting and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
In applying the susceptible to accrual concept to intergovernmental revenues, the legal and contractual
requirements of the numerous individual programs are used as guidance. There are, however,
essentially two types of these revenues. In one, monies must be expended on the specific purpose or
project before any amounts will be paid to the City; therefore, revenues are recognized based upon the
expenditures recorded and the availability criteria. In the other, monies are virtually unrestricted as to
purpose of expenditure and are usually revocable only for failure to comply with the prescribed
requirements. These resources are reflected as revenues at the time of receipt or earlier if the
susceptible to accrual criteria are met.
Licenses and permits, fines and forfeitures, charges for sales and services (other than utility), and
miscellaneous revenues are generally recorded as revenue when received in cash because they are
generally not measurable until actually received. Investment earnings are recorded as earned, since they
are measurable and available.
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However,
principal and interest on long-term debt, claims and judgments and compensated absences are
recognized as expenditures only when payment is due. Capital asset acquisitions are reported as
expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt are reported as other financing
sources.
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
City’s Proprietary Fund is charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for the
Proprietary Fund include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses and depreciation on
capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating
revenues and expenses.
Summary of significant accounting policies
The significant accounting policies followed by the City include the following:
Cash, pooled investments and cash equivalents: The cash balance of most City funds are pooled and
invested. Interest earned on investments is recorded in the General Fund unless otherwise provided by
law. Investments consist of money market accounts, which are stated at cost. For purposes of the
statement of cash flows, all short-term cash investments that are highly liquid (including restricted assets)
are considered to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and, at the day of purchase, have a maturity date no longer than three months. Investments are
reported at fair value. Securities traded on the national or international exchange are valued at the last
reported sales price at current exchange rates.
Property tax receivable: Property tax, including tax increment financing, in governmental funds is
accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting.
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City of LeClaire, Iowa
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2021
Note 1. Nature of Operations, Reporting Entity, Basis of Presentation, Measurement Focus and
Basis of Accounting and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Property tax receivable is recognized in these funds on the levy or lien date, which is the date the tax
asking is certified by the City to the County Board of Supervisors. Current year property tax receivable
represents taxes collected by the County but not remitted to the City at June 30, 2021 and unpaid taxes.
The succeeding year property tax receivable represents taxes certified by the City to be collected in the
next fiscal year for the purposes set out in the budget for the next fiscal year. By statute, the City is
required to certify its budget to the County Auditor by March 31 of each year for the subsequent fiscal
year. However, by statute, the tax asking and budget certification for the following fiscal year becomes
effective on the first day of that year. Although the succeeding year property tax receivable has been
recorded, the related revenue is deferred in both the government-wide and fund financial statements and
will not be recognized until the year for which it is levied.
Property tax revenues recognized in these funds become due and collectible in September and March of
the current fiscal year with a 1 1/2 % per month penalty for delinquent payments; is based on January 1,
2019 assessed property valuations; is for the tax accrual period July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021 and
reflects tax asking contained in the budget certified to the County Board of Supervisors in March 2020.
Customer accounts and unbilled usage: Accounts receivable are recorded in the Proprietary Fund at the
time the service is billed. Unbilled usage for service consumed between periodic scheduled billings dates
is estimated and is recognized as revenue in the period in which the service is provided.
Interfund transactions: Transactions among City funds that would be treated as revenues and
expenditures or expenses if they involved organizations external to City government are accounted for as
revenues and expenditures or expenses in the funds involved.
Transactions which constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures initially made from it which are
property applicable to another fund are recorded as expenditures in the reimbursing fund and as
reductions of expenditures in the reimbursed fund.
Transactions, which constitute the transfer of resources from a fund receiving revenues to a fund through
which the revenues are to be expended, are separately reported n the respective funds’ operating
statements.
Activity between funds that are representative of the lending/borrowing arrangements at the end of the
fiscal year are referred to as “due to/from other funds.” Any residual balances outstanding between the
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial
statements as “internal balances.”
Noncurrent portions of long-term interfund loan receivables are reported as advances within the
governmental funds and are offset equally by a fund balance reserve account which indicates they do not
constitute expendable available financial resources and, therefore, are not available for appropriation.
Due from other governments: Due from other governments represents amounts due from the State of
Iowa, various shared revenues, grants and reimbursements from other governments.
Inventories: Inventories consist of consumable supplies and are valued at cost using the first-in first-out
(FIFO) method. Inventories are recorded as expenses when consumed rather than when purchased.
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Restricted cash and investments: Restricted cash and investments include $138,846 cash donations
restricted for specific projects accounts.
Capital assets: Capital assets, including property, equipment and vehicles, and infrastructure assets (e.g.
roads, bridges, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, and similar items which are immovable and of value only to the
City), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the governmentwide financial statements and the proprietary fund financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the
City as assets with an initial, individual cost in excess of the following thresholds and estimated useful
lives in excess of two years.
Equipment and vehicles
Land, buildings and improvements
Infrastructure

$

5,000
10,000
10,000

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend the life of the asset are not capitalized. Capital assets of the City are depreciated using the
straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:
Buildings and improvements
Equipment
Vehicles
Infrastructure

15-50 years
5-20 years
4-30 years
10-100 years

The City’s collection of works of art and other similar assets are not capitalized. These collections are
unencumbered, held for public exhibition and education, protected, cared for and preserved and subject
to City policy that requires proceeds from the sale of these items to be used to acquire other collection
items.
Unearned revenues: Unearned revenues represent monies received by the City which are not yet earned.
Deferred outflows/inflows of resources: In addition to assets, the balance sheet and/or the statement of
net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate
financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of fund balance or
net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until then. The City has two items that qualify for reporting in this category; the
pension related deferred outflows and the OPEB related deferred outflows.
In addition to liabilities, the balance sheet and/or statement of net position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred
inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of fund balance or net position that applies to a future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The
governmental funds report unavailable revenues from: property taxes, tax increment financing,
assessments, and local option sales tax. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of
resources in the period that the amounts become available. In the City’s government-wide statements
only the property tax and tax increment financing revenues remain as a deferred inflow of resources
under the full accrual basis of accounting and will become an inflow in the year for which they are levied.
The City also reports pension related deferred inflows and OPEB related deferred inflows in the
government-wide statements and the proprietary fund statements.
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Compensated absences: City employees accumulate a limited amount of earned unused vacation hours
for subsequent use or for payment upon termination, death or retirement. The City also allows
employees to accumulate compensatory time during the fiscal year in lieu of overtime pay. A liability is
recorded when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. A liability for
these amounts is reported in governmental fund financial statements only for employees who have
resigned or retired. The compensated absences liability has been computed based on rates of pay in
effect at June 30, 2021. The compensated liability attributable to the governmental activities will be paid
primarily by the General Fund.
Long term liabilities: In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt
and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental or business-type
activities column in the Statement of Net Position and the proprietary fund Statement of Net Position. In
the governmental fund financial statements, the face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing
sources. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as
debt service expenditures.
Fund balance: Governmental funds equity is classified as fund balance. Fund balance is further
classified as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, or unassigned. Nonspendable fund balance
is reported for amounts that are either not in spendable form or legally or contractually required to be
maintained intact. Restrictions of fund balance are reported for amounts constrained by legal restrictions
from outside parties for use for a specific purpose, or externally imposed by outside entities.
Committed fund balance is constrained by formal actions of the City Council, which is considered the
City’s highest level of decision-making authority. Formal actions include resolutions and ordinances by
the City’s intent to use them for a specific purpose. Assigned fund balances are amounts intended to be
used for specific purposes, as authorized by the City Council. Any residual fund balance of the General
Fund and any deficits in other funds, if any, are reported as unassigned.
The City’s flow of funds assumption prescribes that the funds with the highest level of constraint are
expended first. If restricted or unrestricted funds are available for spending, the restricted funds are spent
first. Additionally, if different levels of unrestricted funds are available for spending the City considers
committed funds to be expended first followed by assigned and then unassigned funds.
The Worker’s Compensation Fund, a nonmajor governmental fund, had a deficit fund balance of $27,502
as of June 30, 2021. The deficit is expected to be resolved with future tax revenues.
Net position: In proprietary funds and government-wide financial statements, net position represents the
difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources, and liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources. Net position is reported in three categories:
Net investment in capital assets- consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced
by outstanding balances for bonds, notes and other debt attributable to the acquisition, construction or
improvement of those assets. Net investment in capital assets excludes unspent bond proceeds of
$6,625,028.
Restricted net position- results when constraints placed on its use are either externally imposed or
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Net position restricted through
enabling legislation consists of $518,250 developmental TIF, $73,495 debt service, $139,405 employee
benefits, $95,788 special tax levies, and $41,885 capital projects.
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Unrestricted net position- consists of net position not meeting the definition of the two preceding
categories. Unrestricted net position often has constraints on resources imposed by management which
can be removed or modified.
The City first applied restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both
restricted and unrestricted net position are available.
Use of estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Budgetary and legal appropriation and amendment policies: The City Council annually adopts a budget
on or before March 31 of each year, which becomes effective July 1 and constitutes the City’s
appropriation for each program and purpose specified therein until amended. City budgets may be
amended for specified purposes and budget amendments must be prepared and adopted in the same
manner as the original budgets. The legal level of control (the level on which expenditures may not
legally exceed appropriations) is the program level. Appropriations, as adopted and amended, lapse at
the end of the fiscal year. The City adopts its annual program budget which includes all funds on a
modified accrual basis.
As allowed by GASB Statements No. 41, Budgetary Comparison Schedules- Perspective Differences, the
City presents budgetary comparison schedules as required supplementary information based on the
program structure of eight functional areas as required by state statute for its legally adopted budget.
The City exceeded budgeted expenditures in the community and economic development function by
$3,412, the debt service function by $109,505 and the business-type function by $721,378.
Note 2.

Deposits and Investments

The City’s deposits in banks at June 30, 2021 were entirely covered by federal depository insurance or by
the State Sinking Fund in accordance with Chapter 12C of the Code of Iowa. This chapter provides for
additional assessments against the depositories to insure there will be no loss of public funds.
The City maintains cash and an investment pool for certain funds where the resources have been pooled
in order to maximize investment opportunities.
The City is authorized by state statute to invest public funds in obligations of the United States
government, its agencies and instrumentalities; certificates of deposit or other evidences of deposit at
federally insured depository institutions approved by the City Council; prime eligible bankers acceptances;
certain high rated commercial paper; perfected repurchase agreements; certain registered open-end
management investment companies; certain joint investment trusts; and warrants or improvement
certificates of a drainage district.
As of June 30, 2021, the City’s cash and cash equivalents totaled $12,924,932.
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Deposits and Investments (Continued)

Interest rate risk: Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the
fair value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment the greater the sensitivity
of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. In accordance with the City’s investment policy, the
City limits its exposure to interest rate risk by structuring the portfolio to maximize yields while maintaining
safety of principal.
Credit Risk: Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to
the holder of the investment. The City does not have any investments at June 30, 2021 which are subject
to credit risk.
Concentration of Credit Risk: The City had no investments in any one issued (other than U.S. Treasury
securities, mutual funds, and external investment pools) that represent 5% or more of total City
investments or investments by reporting unit (primary government, discretely presented component unit,
governmental activities, major fund, nonmajor funds in the aggregate, fiduciary funds, etc.)
Custodial Credit Risk- investments- For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that
are in the possession of an outside party. As of June 30, 2021, there was no investment custodial risk for
the City.
The City categorizes its fair value measurements within fair value hierarchy established by generally
accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair
value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs
are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.
The City has no investments subject to fair value measurements as of June 30, 2021.
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Capital Assets

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2021:
June 30, 2020
Balance
Governmental Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Land, right of way
Construction in progress
Total capital assets, not
being depreciated
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
Equipment and vehicles
Infrastructure, road network
Infrastructure, other
Total capital assets,
being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements
Equipment and vehicles
Infrastructure, road network
Infrastructure, other
Total accumulated
depreciation
Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net
Governmental activities
capital assets, net

$

702,770
106,403
3,930,560

Additions

$

130,850
1,674,966

June 30, 2021
Balance

Deletions

$

711,314

$

833,620
106,403
4,894,212

4,739,733

1,805,816

711,314

5,834,235

4,642,732
4,092,660
29,149,158
269,761

818,464
447,174
486,965
145,100

113,843
-

5,461,196
4,425,991
29,636,123
414,861

38,154,311

1,897,703

113,843

39,938,171

1,520,539
2,596,313
10,529,676
125,361

119,242
179,691
697,911
10,685

113,843
-

1,639,781
2,662,161
11,227,587
136,046

14,771,889

1,007,529

113,843

15,665,575

23,382,422

890,174

-

24,272,596

$ 28,122,155

$ 2,695,990

711,314

$ 30,106,831
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Capital Assets (Continued)
June 30, 2020
Balance

Business-Type Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets, not
being depreciated
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings
Equipment and vehicles
Infrastructure, sewer network
Total capital assets, being
depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Equipment and vehicles
Infrastructure, sewer network
Total accumulated
depreciation
Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net
Business-type activities
capital assets, net

$

85,590
4,246

Additions

$

73,944

June 30, 2021
Balance

Deletions

$

-

$

85,590
78,190

89,836

73,944

-

163,780

491,091
917,030
17,864,669

97,050

-

491,091
917,030
17,961,719

19,272,790

97,050

-

19,369,840

270,479
662,382
3,680,340

15,172
37,511
389,943

-

285,651
699,893
4,070,283

4,613,201

442,626

-

5,055,827

14,659,589

(345,576)

-

14,314,013

(271,632) $

-

$ 14,477,793

$ 14,749,425

$

Depreciation expense was charged to the functions of the City as follows:
Governmental Activities:
General government
Culture and recreation
Public safety
Public works
Total depreciation expense, governmental activities

45,807
50,091
122,767
788,864
$ 1,007,529

Business-Type Activities:
Sewer

$

38

$

442,626
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Note 4.

Long-Term Debt

A summary of the changes in bonded and other long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2021 is as
follows:
Balance,
Beginning

Additions

Redeemed/
Matured

Balance,
Ending

Due Within
One Year

$18,877,000
79,788
276,266
96,715
369,766
118,023
$ 19,817,558

$ 14,125,000
239,060
101,259
163,570
13,114
$ 14,642,003

$ 8,472,000
37,665
50,017
96,715
$ 8,656,397

$24,530,000
281,183
226,249
101,259
533,336
131,137
$ 25,803,164

$2,690,000
52,508
101,259
$ 2,843,767

Balance,
Beginning

Additions

Redeemed/
Matured

Balance,
Ending

Due Within
One Year

Governmental Activities
General obligation bonds/notes
Premium
Capital lease purchase agreement
Compensated absences
Net pension liability
Net OPEB liability

Business-Type Activities
Compensated absences
Net pension liability
Net OPEB liability

$
$

24,524
150,033
35,490
210,047

$

30,478
30,599
4,607
65,684

$

$
$

24,524
24,524

$
$

30,478
180,632
40,097
251,207

$
$

30,478
30,478

General Obligation Bonds/Notes: Eight issues of general obligation bonds/notes totaling $24,530,000 are
outstanding at June 30, 2021. General obligation bonds/notes bear interest at rates ranging from 1.25%
to 4.00% per annum and mature in varying annual amounts, ranging from $60,000 to $1,925,000, with the
final maturities due in the year ending June 30, 2030.
On July 7, 2020, the City issued $8,570,000 General Obligation Corporate Purpose and Refunding
Bonds, Series 2020A. The bonds were issued to current refund $620,000 General Obligation Corporate
Purpose Bonds, Series 2014A and to fund various capital projects of the City. The Series 2020A bonds
are due annually on June 1, in principal installments varying from $60,000 to $1,925,000 through June 1,
2030. Interest is payable semiannually on the unpaid balance on June 1 and December 1 at 2.00
percent. The bonds have an outstanding balance as of June 30, 2021, of $8,510,000. The City current
refunded the Series 2014A bonds to reduce its total debt service payments over the next ten years by
$50,418 and to obtain an economic gain of $46,809.
On July 16, 2020, the City issued $5,555,000 General Obligation Annual Appropriation Refunding Bonds,
Series 2020B. The bonds were issued to current refund $865,000 General Obligation Corporate Purpose
Annual Appropriation Bonds, Series 2015B and $4,650,000 General Obligation Annual Appropriation
Refunding Bonds Series 2015A. The Series 2020B bonds are due annually on June 1, in principal
installments varying from $705,000 to $840,000 through June 1, 2027. Interest is payable semiannually
on the unpaid balance on June 1 and December 1 at 2.00 percent. The bonds have an outstanding
balance as of June 30, 2021, of $4,770,000. The City current refunded the Series 2015A and Series
2015B bonds to reduce its total debt service payments over the next seven years by $238,164 and to
obtain an economic gain of $224,694.
Compensated absences: Compensated absences attributable to governmental activities are generally
liquidated by the General Fund.
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Details of general obligation bonds/notes payable at June 30, 2021 are as follows:
Date of
Issue

Interest
Rates

Governmental activities:
General Obligation
bonds/notes:
Corporate purpose
12/1/2011
2.00-2.90
Refunding bonds
annual appropriation
refunding
6/1/2012
1.25-3.75
Corporate purpose
refunding bonds
9/24/2015
1.65-3.45
Sewer improvement
notes
3/1/2016
3.00
Annual appropriation
corporate purpose and
refunding bonds
10/15/2016
2.00-2.60
Corporate purpose
8/22/2018
3.00-4.00
Corporate purpose and
refunding
7/7/2020
2.00
Annual appropriation
refunding bonds
7/16/2020
2.00
Total governmental activities bonds/notes payable

Final Due
Date

Annual Payments

Amount
Originally
Issued

Outstanding
June 30, 2021

6/1/2022

215,000-265,000

2,385,000

$

6/1/2020

100,000-490,000

2,395,000

225,000

6/1/2030

45,000-425,000

3,565,000

3,445,000

6/1/2026

85,000-115,000

1,025,000

550,000

6/1/2028
6/1/2028

115,000-515,000
275,000-1,030,000

3,805,000
4,405,000

2,635,000
4,130,000

6/1/2028

60,000-1,925,000

8,570,000

8,510,000

6/1/2027

705,000-840,000

5,555,000
$

265,000

4,770,000
24,530,000

A summary of the annual general obligation bonds/notes principal and interest requirements to maturity
by year is as follows:

Year ending June 30:
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027-2030
Total

Principal
2,690,000
2,695,000
2,630,000
2,755,000
3,040,000
10,720,000
$ 24,530,000

$

40

$

$

Interest
617,711
537,809
471,953
406,105
340,375
600,626
2,974,579

$

$

Total
3,307,711
3,232,809
3,101,953
3,161,105
3,380,375
11,320,626
27,504,579
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Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Capital Lease Purchase Agreement: The City entered into a capital lease purchase agreement for a fire
truck. The following is a schedule of the future minimum lease payments, including interest at 4.98% per
annum:

Year ending June 30:
2022
2023
2024
2025
Total

Principal
52,508
55,123
57,868
60,750
$
226,249

$

Interest
11,267
8,652
5,907
3,025
28,851

$

Total
63,775
63,775
63,775
63,775
255,100

Principal and interest payments under the capital lease purchase agreement totaled $50,017 and $13,758
respectively, during the year ended June 30, 2021. The fire truck original cost was $790,153 and has
$450,697 accumulated depreciation for a net book value of $339,456.
Contingent Liability for Hydro-Electric Promissory Note: On January 15, 1990 the City entered into a loan
agreement with Voith Hydro, Inc., for $700,000. The City received $250,000 on May 14, 1990 and
$450,000 during the year ended June 30, 1991 for the purpose of paying costs related to the planning,
design and development of the hydro-electric generating plant. The note bears interest payable at
maturity at the rate of 7.25% per annum. The note will mature 30 days after the issuance of the notice to
proceed. The outstanding balance at June 30, 2021 was $700,000. The Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission (FERC) imposed certain restrictions upon the City’s license for the development of the
generating plant. If the generating plant does not proceed, any accumulated assets are sold and used to
satisfy the Voith Hydro, Inc. loan. Any remaining balance on the loan is forgiven. The future
development of the generating plant remains uncertain. The note and interest payable are not general
obligations of the City and are not payable from taxes or general revenues or funds of the City.
Conduit Debt: The City issued a $10,000,000 Health Care Facilities Revenue Bond (WellSpire-Bettendorf
Project) for the purpose of lending the proceeds to WellSpire, LLC to finance a portion of the costs of
constructing, equipping, and furnishing facilities of a senior living campus. The bond was issued in
conjunction with the City of Princeton, Iowa and the City of Riverdale, Iowa each issuing a $10,000,000
Health Care Facilities Revenue Bond to WellSpire, LLC. The new senior living campus property financed
by the three cities is pledged as collateral, and the bonds are payable solely from payments received by
WellSpire, LLC directly to the debt holder. WellSpire, LLC is the obligor of the underlying bond for the
project. In addition, no commitments beyond maintenance of the tax-exempt status of the conduit debt
obligation were extended by the City for the bond. As June 30, 2021, the bonds have an aggregate
outstanding principal amount payable of $10,000,000.
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Legal debt margin: As of June 30, 2021, the general obligation and contractual debt issued by the City did
not exceed its legal debt margin as shown by the computation that follows:
Total assessed valuation*

$ 496,421,822

Debt limit, 5% of total actual valuation
Debt applicable to debt limit, debt service
general obligation loan notes and bonds**
Legal debt margin

24,821,091

$

19,625,440
5,195,651

* 100% of assessed valuation including TIF increment.
**Only the annual appropriation debt principal coming due in the next
fiscal year applies to the City's statutory debt limit. This includes
TIF rebate obligations.

Note 5.

Development and Rebate Agreements

The City has entered into development and rebate agreements to assist in certain urban renewal projects.
The City agreed to rebate incremental taxes paid by the developers in exchange for infrastructure
improvements, development of commercial retail space and residential housing constructed by the
developers as set forth in the urban renewal plan and the individual development and rebate agreements.
The incremental taxes to be received by the City under Chapter 403.19 of the Code of Iowa from the
developers will be rebated for a period ranging from four to twenty years, beginning with the tax year in
which the property taxes on the completed value of the improvements are first paid. Certain of the
agreements include provisions for payment of interest. To the extent there are insufficient tax increment
revenues available to make the required schedule payment on any payment date, the unpaid amount
shall be carried over to the next payment date without accruing any further interest.
During the year ended June 30, 2021, the City rebated $1,646,640 of the incremental taxes to the
developers, paying $1,646,640 of the principal and $0 of the interest. The outstanding principal balance
on the rebate agreements at June 30, 2021 is $16,372,334.
The agreements are not general obligations of the City and, due to their nature, are not recorded as a
liability in the City’s financial statements. However, the agreements are subject to the constitutional debt
limitation of the City, as described below.
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Nine agreements with outstanding principal balances at June 30, 2021 include an annual appropriation
clause and only the amount payable in the succeeding year is subject to the constitutional debt limitation.

Maximum
Original
TIF
Commitment District
$ 1,950,000 TIF LMI
1,260,000 TIF LMI

RDA
Date
Developer Name
4/2/2012 RMV, LLC
2/7/2012 JNG Pebble Creek
and PVC Development
2,340,000 TIF LMI 2/7/2012 JNG Pebble Creek
and PVC Development
75,000 TIF I
4/1/2013 Antique Archaeology
8,500,000 TIF I
7/18/2005 Cody's Hunt
280,000 TIF I
8/20/2007 KP & V
74,000 TIF II 12/15/2014 Back Properties

500,000
300,000
2,800,000
12,817,325
10,000,000
$ 43,408,506

Note 6.

TIF II
TIF II
TIF II
TIF III
TIF III

2/18/2013
5/17/2010
3/21/2005
5/19/2003
9/10/2006

Project
Cody's Legacy
Pebbles Creek Villas
"Priority"
Pebbles Creek Villas
"Balance"
Retail Commercial
Residential
Residential/Retail
Retail Commercial

June 30, 2021
Expended
Maximum
Reimbursement June 30,
Outstanding
Terms
2021
Commitment
LMI as available $ 140,000 $
140,000
LMI as available

30,000

330,000

LMI as available
100% TIF
100% TIF
100% TIF
85% TIF
Graduated
Markman Peat
Retail Commercial
Schedule
Mississippi River Distilling Retail Commercial
85% TIF
River Run
Retail Commercial
100% TIF
Country Club Base, LLC Pebbles Creek PH #1 100% TIF
Country Club Base, LLC Pebbles Creek PH #2 100% TIF

217,723
3,554
81,843
9,823

970,734
53,383
202,481
-

11,642
423,197
12,973
175,672
168,217
381,641
7,301,310
589,224
6,775,557
$ 1,646,640 $ 16,372,334

Interfund Balances and Interfund Transfers

The detail of interfund balances as of June 30, 2021 is as follows:

Due From
Other Funds

Major governmental funds:
General Fund
Nonmajor governmental funds:
Workers' compensation
Employees' Retirement FICA/IPERS
Group insurance
Local option sales tax
Total
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$

60,723

$

10,012
81,439
28,073
180,247

Due To
Other Funds

$

142,162

$

28,073
10,012
180,247
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Note 6.

Interfund Balances and Interfund Transfers (Continued)

The detail of interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2021 is as follows:
Total
Transfers
In
Governmental activities:
General fund
Tax increment financing
Debt service fund
Capital projects fund
Nonmajor governmental funds
Business-type activities:
Sewer
Total

$

$

139,536
2,569,413
2,708,949

Transfers
Out
$

$

1,884,019
135,740
671,131
18,059
2,708,949

Transfers generally move resources from the fund statutorily required to collect the resources to the fund
statutorily required to expend the resources.
Note 7.

Pension and Retirement Systems

Plan Description – IPERS membership is mandatory for employees of the City, except for those covered
by another retirement system. Employees of the City are provided with pensions through a cost-sharing
multiple employer defined benefit pension plan administered by Iowa Public Employees’ Retirement
System (IPERS). IPERS issues a stand-alone financial report which is available to the public by mail at
7401 Register Drive P.O. Box 9117, Des Moines, Iowa 50306-9117 or at www.ipers.org.
IPERS benefits are established under Iowa Code chapter 97B and the administrative rules thereunder.
Chapter 97B and the administrative rules are the official plan documents. The following brief description is
provided for general informational purposes only. Refer to the plan documents for more information.
Pension Benefits – A regular member may retire at normal retirement age and receive monthly benefits
without an early-retirement reduction. Normal retirement age is age 65, any time after reaching age 62
with 20 or more years of covered employment, or when the member’s years of service plus the member’s
age at the last birthday equals or exceeds 88, whichever comes first. (These qualifications must be met
on the member’s first month of entitlement to benefits.) Members cannot begin receiving retirement
benefits before age 55. The formula used to calculate a Regular member’s monthly IPERS benefit
includes:
 A multiplier (based on years of service).
 The member’s highest five-year average salary, except members with service before June 30,
2012, will use the highest three-year average salary as of that date if it is greater than the highest
five-year average salary.
Protection occupation members may retire at normal retirement age which is generally at age 55 and may
retire any time after reaching age 50 with 22 or more years of covered employment. The formula used to
calculate a protection occupation members’ monthly IPERS benefit includes:
 60% of average salary after completion of 22 years of service, plus an additional 1.5% of average
salary for years of service greater than 22 but not more than 30 years of service.
 The member’s highest three-year average salary.
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Pension and Retirement Systems (Continued)

If a member retires before normal retirement age, the member’s monthly retirement benefit will be
permanently reduced by an early-retirement reduction. The early-retirement reduction is calculated
differently for service earned before and after July 1, 2012. For service earned before July 1, 2012, the
reduction is 0.25 percent for each month that the member receives benefits before the member’s earliest
normal retirement age. For service earned starting July 1, 2012, the reduction is 0.50 percent for each
month that the member receives benefits before 65.
Generally, once a member selects a benefit option, a monthly benefit is calculated and remains the same
for the rest of the member’s lifetime. However, to combat the effects of inflation, retirees who began
receiving benefits prior to July 1990 receive a guaranteed dividend with their regular November benefit
payments.
Disability and Death Benefits – A vested member who is awarded federal Social Security disability or
Railroad Retirement disability benefits is eligible to claim IPERS benefits regardless of age. Disability
benefits are not reduced for early retirement. If a member dies before retirement, the member’s
beneficiary will receive a lifetime annuity or a lump-sum payment equal to the present actuarial value of
the member’s accrued benefit or calculated with a set formula, whichever is greater. When a member dies
after retirement, death benefits depend on the benefit option the member selected at retirement.
Contributions – Contribution rates are established by IPERS following the annual actuarial valuation
which applies IPERS’ Contribution Rate Funding Policy and Actuarial Amortization Method. State statute
limits the amount rates can increase or decrease each year to 1 percentage point. IPERS Contribution
Rate Funding Policy requires the actuarial contribution rate be determined using the “entry age normal”
actuarial cost method and the actuarial assumptions and methods approved by the IPERS Investment
Board. The actuarial contribution rate covers normal cost plus the unfunded actuarial liability payment
based on a 30-year amortization period. The payment to amortize the unfunded actuarial liability is
determined as a level percentage of payroll, based on the Actuarial Amortization Method adopted by the
Investment Board.
In fiscal year 2021, pursuant to the required rate, Regular members contributed 6.29 percent of pay of
covered payroll and the City contributed 9.44 percent for a total rate of 15.73 percent. Protective
occupation members contributed 6.41 percent of pay of covered payroll and the City contributed 9.61
percent for a total rate of 16.02 percent.
The City’s contributions to IPERS for the year ended June 30, 2021 were $124,360.
Net Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions – At June 30, 2021, the City reported a liability of $713,968 for its
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30,
2020, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of that date. The City’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on the City’s
share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the contributions of all IPERS participating
employers. At June 30, 2020, the City’s collective proportion was 0.0101636 percent which was a
decrease of 0.001187 percent from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2019.
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Pension and Retirement Systems (Continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the City recognized pension expense of $162,962 At June 30, 2021,
the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions
from the following sources:
Deferred
Deferred
Outflows
Inflows
of Resources
of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience
$
6,224 $
16,658
Changes of assumptions
51,488
818
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments
66,192
Changes in proportion and differences between City
contributions and proportionate share of contributions
14,098
9,507
City contributions subsequent to the measurement date
124,360
Total
$
262,362 $
26,983
Deferred outflows of resources of $124,360 related to pensions resulting from the City contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the
year ended June 30, 2022. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:
Year Ended June 30,
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
Total

$

$

17,779
26,917
25,577
39,841
905
111,019

There were no non-employer contributing entities at IPERS.
Actuarial Assumptions – The total pension liability in the June 30, 2021 actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:
Rate of Inflation
(effective June 30, 2017)
Salary Increases
(effective June 30, 2017)
Investment rate of return
(effective June 30, 2017)
Wage growth
(effective June 30, 2017)

2.60 percent per annum
3.25 percent to 16.25 percent average, including
inflaction. Rates vary by membership group.
7.00 percent per annum, compounded annually,
net of pension plan, investment expense,
including inflation
3.25 percent per annum, based on 2.60 percent
inflation and 0.65 percent real wage inflation

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020 valuation were based on the results of and
economic assumption study dated March 24, 2017 and a demographic assumption study dated June 28,
2018. Mortality rates used in the 2020 valuation were based on the RP-2014 Employee and Healthy
Annuitant Tables with MP-2017 generational adjustments.
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Pension and Retirement Systems (Continued)

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates (expected returns, net of pension plan
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined
to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by
the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best
estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following
table:
Long-Term
Asset
Expected Real
Asset Class
Allocation
Rate of Return
Domestic equity
22.0%
4.43%
International equity
17.5%
5.15%
Global smart beta equity
6.0%
4.87%
Core plus fixed income
28.0%
-0.29%
Public credit
4.0%
2.29%
Cash
1.0%
-0.78%
Private equity
11.0%
6.54%
Private real assets
7.5%
4.48%
Private credit
3.0%
3.11%
Total
100%

Discount Rate – The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.0 percent. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be
made at the contractually required rate and that contributions from the City will be made at contractually
required rates, actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net
position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and
inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.
Sensitivity of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
The following presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate of 7.0 percent, as well as what the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.0 percent) or 1percentage-point higher (8.0 percent) than the current rate.
1%
Decrease
(6.0%)
City's proportionate share of the
net pension liability

$

1,444,569

Discount
Rate
(7.0%)
$

713,968

1%
Increase
(8.0%)
$

101,702

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position – Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position
is available in the separately issued IPERS financial report which is available on IPERS’ website at
www.ipers.org.
Payables to the Pension Plan – At June 30, 2021, the City reported payables to the defined benefit
pension plan of $13,748 for legally required employer contributions and $9,164 for legally required
employee contributions which had been withheld from employee wages but not yet remitted to IPERS.
47

City of LeClaire, Iowa
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2021
Note 8.

Other Post-Employment Benefits

Plan description: The City’s defined benefit OPEB plan, City of LeClaire Postemployment Plan Other
Than Pensions (the Plan), provides postemployment benefits for eligible participants enrolled in its plans.
The Plan is a single employer defined benefit OPEB plan administered by the City. Under Chapter
509A.13 of the Code of Iowa, “Group Insurance for Public Employees,” If a governing body has procured
insurance for its employees, the governing body shall allow its employees who retired before the age of
sixty-five years of age to continue participation in the group plan at the employee’s own expense until the
employee attains sixty-five years of age. The retiree must be at least 55 years of age, have ten years of
full-time service and already participating in the health plan at retirement to be eligible.
No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of Statement No. 75.
Benefits provided: The Plan provides healthcare benefits including medical, hospitalization, prescription
drug and dental benefits for retirees and their spouses. Retiree health care coverage is available to
eligible retirees of any age. There retirees are responsible for paying 100% of the associated premiums
for these benefits.
The full monthly premium rates as of January 1, 2020 for each plan are as shown below:
Plan

Single
13,210

PPO Plan

Employees covered by benefit terms: At June 30, 2021, the following employees were covered by the
benefit terms:
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefit payments
Active employees

22
22

Total OPEB Liability: The City’s total OPEB liability of $171,234 was measured as of June 30, 2021 and
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020 rolled forward to June 30, 2021.
Actuarial assumptions and other inputs: The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2021 actuarial valuation
was determined using the following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included
in the measurement unless otherwise specified:
Inflation
Salary increases
Discount rate
Retirees' share of benefit-related costs
Health care cost trend rate

3.00% per annum
4.00% per annum
2.18% per annum
100%
6.80% initial decreasing to an ultimate rate of 4.50%

The discount rate was based on the S&P Municipal Bond 20 Year High Grade Rate Index. Mortality rates
were based on the PubG.H-2010 mortality table- general. The actuarial assumptions used in the June
30, 2021 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period 2010– 2018.
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Other Post-Employment Benefits (Continued)

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability

Balance at July 1, 2020
Changes for the year:
Service cost
Interest
Changes of benefit terms
Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes in assumptions or other inputs
Benefit payments
Net changes
Balance at June 30, 2021

Total OPEB
Liability
$
153,513

$

8,398
4,083
5,240
17,721
171,234

There were no changes as a result of changes in benefit terms. Changes of assumptions or other inputs
reflect a change in the discount rate from 2.66% per annum in 2020 to 2.18% per annum in 2021.
Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate: The following presents the total
OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City’s total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using
a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current discount
rate:
1% Decrease
Discount Rate
1% Increase
1.18%
2.18%
3.18%
Total OPEB liability
$
182,884 $
171,234 $
160,649
Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates: The following presents
that total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City’s total OPEB liability would be if it were
calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher
than the current healthcare cost trend rates.
Healthcare Cost
1% Decrease
Trend Rates
1% Increase
5.80%
6.80%
7.80%
Total OPEB liability
$
158,307 $
171,234 $
185,904
For the year ended June 30, 2021, the City recognized OPEB expense of $19,591. At June 30, 2021, the
City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the
following sources:
Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources
of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience
$
36,438 $
23,942
Changes of assumptions or other inputs
35,669
43,967
Net difference between projected and actual investments
Total
$
72,107 $
67,909
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Other Post-Employment Benefits (Continued)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB
will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:
Year ended June 30:
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
Thereafter

$

$

Note 9.

7,249
7,249
(8,169)
(2,131)
4,198

Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft; damage to the destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. These risks are covered by the
purchase of commercial insurance. Settled claims from these risks have not exceeded commercial
insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.
The City has a group insurance policy which provides comprehensive medical coverage for eligible
employees and, if elected, their spouses and dependents. The City’s group insurance is a partial selffunded health plan. Under the partial self-funded plan, the City will reimburse an eligible employee for a
portion of the deductible. The amount of the deductibles for the employees and the City are as follows:

Employee- AFSCME
Employee- Teamsters
City

$

Single
900
1,250
4,000

Family
$ 1,800
2,500
8,000

The City self-funds dental coverage of eligible employees, and if elected, their spouses and dependents.
The maximum annual coverage is $1,000 per person.
The City self-funds short-term disability benefits for employees. Benefits equal 100% of the employee’s
salary for the first three working days and 75% of the employee’s salary for the remaining days up to six
months, at which time the City’s long-term disability insurance coverage begins. The City records the
plan assets and related liabilities for the self-funded plan in the General Fund.
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Commitments

Effective January 1, 2015, the City renewed the contract with QC Analytical Services to provide a certified
wastewater plant operator to comply with Iowa Department of Natural Resources regulations. The
contractor oversees the wastewater treatment facility and manages essential City wastewater personnel
and contractor personnel. The fee for these services is $1,284.64 per month, which is paid from the
Sewer Fund. During the year ended June 30, 2021, payments under the agreement totaled $46,670.
Effective October 7, 2019, the City entered into a noncancelable 60-month agreement for IT support. The
agreement calls for monthly payments of $6,195. The contract was amended on March 16, 2020 for an
additional monthly amount of $880 for total monthly payments of $7,075. Payments under the agreement
totaled $84,900.
The City has engineering and construction projects underway at year end. There are no outstanding
contract commitments for street and other improvement construction at June 30, 2021. The City is
planning construction bidding at this time.
Note 11.

Cell Tower Lease

The City received cell tower rent of approximately $66,000 from a lease agreement with CCATT LLC that
commenced on March 1, 2001 and was to expire on February 28, 2026.
On December 17, 2018, the City approve a resolution for the 2020 “Crown Castle” Cell Tower 3rd
Amendment Ground Space Lease Agreement with CCATT LLC. The amendment extended the lease to
February 28, 2066 and changed the computation of lease rent to the City beginning March 1, 2021. The
lessee shall pay annual rent payments in an amount equal to the greater of $50,000 or 50 percent of all
gross rental or license revenues received from the leased premises for the lease year. Beginning March
1, 2022, and for every year thereafter, the annual base rent shall increase by an amount equal to 3
percent of the annual base rent in effect for the immediate preceding year.
As additional consideration for amending the lease, the lessee agreed to pay the City $750,000. The City
received $250,000 on December 31, 2018 and received the remaining $500,000 on January 1, 2020 and
June 30, 2020.
Note 12.

New Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements and Pending
Pronouncements

The City adopted the following statements during the year ended June 30, 2021:
GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities: The objective of this Statement is to improve guidance
regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how
those activities should be reported. The focus of the identification criteria established by the Statement is
on 1) whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary activity and 2) the beneficiaries with
whom a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate criteria are included to identify fiduciary component units
and postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary activities. An activity meeting the criteria
should be reported as a fiduciary fund in the basic financial statements. This Statement also provides for
recognition of a liability to the beneficiaries in a fiduciary fund when an event has occurred that compels
the government to disburse fiduciary resources.
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New Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements and Pending
Pronouncements (Continued)

GASB Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interest-An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 14 and No. 61:
The primary objectives of this Statement are to improve consistency and comparability of reporting a
government’s majority equity interest in a legally separate organization and to improve the relevance of
financial statement information for certain component units. It defines a majority equity interest and
specifies the reporting of a majority equity interest. This Statement also requires that a component unit in
which a government has a 100 percent equity interest account for its assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources at acquisition value at the date the government
acquired the 100 percent equity interest in the component unit.
GASB Statement No. 98, The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report. This Statement establishes the
term annual comprehensive financial report and its acronym ACFR. This new term and acronym replace
instances of comprehensive annual financial report and its acronym in generally accepted accounting
principles for state and local governments. This Statement was development in response to concerns
raised by stakeholders that the common pronunciation of the acronym for comprehensive annual financial
report sounds like a profoundly objectional racial slur. This Statement’s introduction of the new term is
founded on a commitment to promoting inclusiveness.
The implementation of the above statements did not have a material impact on the City’s Financial
Statements.
As of June 30, 2021, GASB had issued several statements not yet required to be implemented by the
City. The Statements which might impact the City are as follows:
GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, issued June 2017, will be effective for the City beginning with its fiscal
year ending June 30, 2022. The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information needs of
financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments. This
Statement increases the usefulness of governments’ financial statements by requiring recognition of
certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and
recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the
contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that
leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to
recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize
a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency
of information about governments’ leasing activities.
GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost before the End of a Construction Period, issued
June 2018, will be effective for the City beginning with its fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. This
Statement establishes accounting requirements for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction
period. Such interest cost includes all interest that was previously accounted for in accordance with the
requirements of paragraphs 5-22 of Statement No. 62, which are superseded by this Statement. This
Statement requires that interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period be recognized as an
expense in the period in which the cost is incurred for financial statements prepared using the economic
resources measurement focus. As a result, interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period
will not be included in the historical cost of a capital asset reported in a business-type activity or an
enterprise fund. This statement also reiterates that in financial statements prepared using the current
financial resources measurement focus, interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period
should be recognized as an expenditure on a basis consistent with governmental fund accounting
principles.
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New Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements and Pending
Pronouncements (Continued)

GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations, issued May 2020, will be effective for the City
beginning with its fiscal year ending June 30, 2023. This Statement achieves those objectives by
clarifying the existing definition of a conduit debt obligation; establishing that a conduit debt obligation is
not a liability of the issuer; establishing standards for accounting and financial reporting of additional
commitments and voluntary commitments extended by issuers and arrangements association with
conduit debt obligations; and improving required note disclosures. This Statement requires issuers to
disclose general information about their conduit debt obligations organized by type of commitment,
including the aggregate outstanding principal amount of the issuers’ conduit debt obligations and a
description of each type of commitment. Issuers that recognize liabilities related to supporting the debt
service of conduit debt obligations also should disclose information about the amount recognized and
how the liabilities changed during the reporting period.
GASB Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020, issued January 2020, will be effective for the City beginning
with its fiscal year ending June 30, 2022 except for the requirements related to the effective date of
Statement No. 87 and Implementation Guide 2020-3, reinsurance recoveries, and terminology used to
refer to derivative instruments are effective upon issuance. The objectives of this Statement are to
enhance comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency of
authoritative literature by addressing practice issues that have been identified during implementation and
application of certain GASB Statements. This Statement addresses a variety of topics including leases,
intra-entity transfers, assets accumulated for postemployment benefits, applicability of Statement No. 84
to postemployment benefit arrangements, measurement of liabilities related to asset retirement
obligations in a government acquisition, reporting by public entity risk pools for amounts that are
recoverable from reinsurers or excess insurers, nonrecurring fair value measurements of assets or
liabilities, and terminology to refer to derivative instruments.
GASB Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates, issued March 2020, will be effective
for the City beginning with its fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. The objective of this Statement is to
address those and other accounting and financial reporting implications that result from the replacement
of an IBOR. This statement provides exceptions for certain hedging derivative instruments to the hedge
accounting termination provisions when an IBOR is replaced as the reference rate of the hedging
derivative instrument’s variably payment, clarifies the hedge accounting termination provisions when a
hedge item is amended to replace the reference rate, clarifies the uncertainty related to the continued
availability of IBORS, removes LIBOR as an appropriate benchmark interest rate for qualitative
evaluation, identifies a Secured Overnight Financing Rate and the Effective Federal Funds Rate as
appropriate benchmark interest rates for the qualitative evaluation of the effectiveness of an interest rate
swap, and clarifies the definition of reference rate, as it is used in Statement 53, as amended.
GASB Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment
Arrangements, issued March 2020, will be effective for the City beginning with its fiscal year ending June
30, 2023. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting by addressing issues
related to public-private and public-public partnership arrangements (PPPs). As used in this Statement, a
PPP is an arrangement in which a government (the transferor) contracts with an operator (a
governmental or nongovernmental entity) to provide public services by conveying control of the right to
operate or use a nonfinancial asset, such as infrastructure or other capital asset (the underlying PPP
asset), for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. This Statement also provides
guidance for accounting and financial reporting for availability payment arrangements (APAs). As defined
in this Statement, an APA is an arrangement in which a government compensates an operator for
services that may include designing, constructing, financing, maintaining, or operating an underlying
nonfinancial asset for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction.
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New Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements and Pending
Pronouncements (Continued)

GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements, issued May 2020,
will be effective for the City beginning will its fiscal year ending June 30, 2023. This Statement provides
guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-based information technology
arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users (governments). This Statement 1) defines a SBITA; 2)
establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use subscription assets- an intangible asset- and a
corresponding subscription liability; 3) provides the capitalization criteria for outlays other than
subscription payments, including implementation costs of a SBITA; and 4) requires note disclosures
regarding a SBITA.
GASB Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans- an amendment of GASB Statements
No. 14 and No. 84, and a supersession of GASB Statement No. 32, issued June 2020, will be effective for
the City beginning with its fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. The primary objective of this Statement are
to 1) increase consistency and comparability related to the reporting of fiduciary component units in
circumstances in which a potential component unit does not have a governing board and the primary
government performs the duties that a governing board typically would perform; 2) mitigate costs
associated with the reporting of certain defined contribution pension plans, defined contribution other
postemployment benefit (OPEB) plans, and employee benefit plans other than pension plans or OPEB
plans (other employee benefit plans) as fiduciary component units in fiduciary fund financial statements;
and 3) enhance the relevance, consistency, and comparability of the accounting and financial reporting
for Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457 deferred compensation plans (Section 457 plans) that meet
the definition of a pension plan and for benefits provided through those plans.
The City’s management has not yet determined the effect these Statements will have on the City’s
financial statements.
Note 13.

Subsequent Event

The COVID-19 outbreak is disrupting business across a range of industries in the United States and
financial markets have experienced a significant decline. As a result, local, regional and national
economies, including that of the City, may be adversely impacted. The extent of the financial impact of
COVID-19 will depend on future developments, including the duration and spread, which are uncertain
and cannot be predicted. Due to the uncertainties surrounding the outbreak, management cannot
presently estimate the potential impact on the City’s operations and finances.

54

City of LeClaire, Iowa
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Budget and Actual - All Governmental and Proprietary Funds
Required Supplementary Information
Year Ended June 30, 2021

Governmental
Fund Types
Actual
Revenues:
Property tax
Tax increment financing
Other taxes
Special assessments
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Use of money and property
Fines, Fees and Miscellaneous
Total revenues

$

Expenditures/expenses:
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Community and economic development
General government
Capital outlay
Debt service
Business-type
Total expenditures/expenses

$

1,000,966
945,610
412,334
1,803,350
658,371
2,013,871
9,397,596
16,232,098

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures/expenses
Other financing sources (uses), net
Net change in fund balance
Balance, beginning of year
Balance, end of year

2,370,837
3,515,220
963,292
17,998
844,911
486,359
74,313
684,817
8,957,747

Proprietary
Fund Types
Actual

$

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information.
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3,343
887,062
7,487
9,321
907,213

Total Actual
$

1,122,551
1,122,551

2,370,837
3,515,220
963,292
3,343
17,998
844,911
1,373,421
81,800
694,138
9,864,960

1,000,966
945,610
412,334
1,803,350
658,371
2,013,871
9,397,596
1,122,551
17,354,649

(7,274,351)

(215,338)

(7,489,689)

14,404,444

78,991

14,483,435

7,130,093

(136,347)

6,993,746

3,468,354
10,598,447

$

16,116,064
15,979,717

$

19,584,418
26,578,164

Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final
$

2,347,717
3,514,604
970,050
100
12,650
675,965
1,365,042
152,623
655,367
9,694,118

$

2,347,717
3,514,604
970,050
100
12,650
725,965
1,365,042
161,598
1,236,759
10,334,485

Final to Actual
Variance
Over (Under)
$

23,120
616
(6,758)
3,243
5,348
118,946
8,379
(79,798)
(542,621)
(469,525)

1,256,370
1,149,623
414,593
1,799,938
429,099
5,923,384
2,939,012
1,747,711
15,659,730

1,256,370
1,149,623
440,130
1,799,938
732,799
5,923,384
9,288,091
401,173
20,991,508

255,404
204,013
27,796
(3,412)
74,428
3,909,513
(109,505)
(721,378)
3,636,859

(5,965,612)

(10,657,023)

3,167,334

6,736,000

14,135,000

348,435

770,388

3,477,977

3,515,769
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City of LeClaire, Iowa
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Changes in the City's Total OPEB
Liability and Related Ratios
Last Four Fiscal Years

2021

2020

2019

2018

Total OPEB liability
Changes for the year:
Service cost
Interest
Changes of benefit terms
Differences between expected and
actual experience
Changes in assumptions or other inputs
Benefit payments
Other
Net changes in total OPEB liability
Total OPEB liability - beginning
Total OPEB liability - ending
Covered employee payroll

$

8,398
4,083
-

$

$

5,240
17,721
153,513
171,234

$

$

1,183,011

$

Total OPEB liability as a percentage of covered
employee payroll

7,856
5,541
-

$

(38,519)
(21,387)
1,418
(45,091)
198,604
153,513 $
1,183,011

$

11,122
5,158
-

$

12,613
(6,739)
22,154
176,450
198,604 $
1,055,048

$

10,097
2,300
108,483
(17,909)
102,971
73,479
176,450
1,097,185

14.47%

12.98%

18.82%

16.08%

2.18%

2.66%

2.79%

2.98%

Notes to Schedule:
Changes of benefit terms:
There were no changes to the benefit terms of the Plan.
Changes of assumption:
Changes of assumptions or other inputs reflect
a change in the discount rate as follows:

No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of Statement No. 75
Note: The schedule is intended to present information for ten years.
Information prior to 2018 is not available.
See Notes to Required Supplementary Information
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City of LeClaire, Iowa
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of the City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
Iowa Public Employees' Retirement System
Last Seven Fiscal Years

2021*
City's proportion of the net pension liability

2020*

0.0101636%

0.0089765%

City's proportionate share of the net pension liability

$

713,968

$

519,799

City's covered payroll

$

1,219,782

$

1,160,723

City's proportionate share of the net pension liability as a
percentage of its covered payroll

58.53%

44.78%

Plan fiduciary net pension as a percentage of the
total pension liability

82.90%

85.45%

*The amounts presented for each fiscal year were
determined as of the prior fiscal year-end.
Note: The schedule is intended to present
information for ten years. Information prior
to 2015 is not available.
See Notes to Required Supplementary Information.
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2019*

2018*

0.0097052%

2017*

0.0098054%

2016*

0.0097790%

2015*

0.8624300%

0.7270000%

$

614,168

$

653,162

$

713,968

$

426,083

$

288,304

$

1,187,450

$

1,132,041

$

1,060,081

$

1,048,239

$

1,020,742

51.72%

57.70%

67.35%

40.65%

28.24%

83.62%

82.21%

81.82%

85.19%

87.61%
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City of LeClaire, Iowa
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of City Contributions
Iowa Public Employees' Retirement System
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2021

2020
$

$

Contributions in relation to the
statutorily required contribution

$

Contribution deficiency (excess)

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

City's covered payroll

$

1,309,171

$

1,219,782

$

1,160,723

$

1,187,450

(124,360) $

9.50%

117,296

(117,296) $

9.62%

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information.
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$

2018

Statutorily required contribution

Contributions as a percentage of
covered payroll

124,360

2019
113,005

$

(113,005) $

9.74%

110,187

(110,187)

9.28%

2017
$

$

2016

104,955

$

(104,955) $

2015

98,168

$

(98,168) $

2014

98,278

$

(98,278) $

2013

95,951

$

(95,951) $

2012

86,170

$

(86,170) $

86,501

(86,501)

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

1,132,041

$

1,060,081

$

1,048,239

$

1,020,742

$

918,005

$

968,741

9.27%

9.26%

9.38%

9.40%
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8.93%
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City of LeClaire, Iowa
Notes to Required Supplementary Information
Year Ended June 30, 2021
Note 1.

Budgetary Information

In accordance with the Code of Iowa, the City Council annually adopts a budget following publication of a
required public notice and holding of a public hearing for all funds. The budget basis of accounting is in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The annual
budget may be amended during the year utilizing similar statutorily prescribed procedures.
Formal and legal budgetary control is based upon nine major classes of disbursements known as
functions, not by fund or fund type. These nine functions are: public safety, public works, health and
social services, culture and recreation, community and economic development, general government, debt
service, capital outlay and business-type. During the year, two budget amendments increased budgeted
expenditures by a total of $5,331,778
The City over expended the community and economic development function, debt service function and
business-type function.
Note 2.

Iowa Public Employees’ Retirement System

There are no significant changes in benefit terms.
Changes of assumptions:
The 2018 valuation implemented the following refinements as a result of a demographic assumption
study dated June 28, 2018:
 Changed mortality assumptions to the RP-2014 mortality tables with mortality
improvements modeled using Scale MP-2017.
 Adjusted retirement rates.
 Lowered disability rates.
 Adjusted the probability of a vested Regular member electing to receive a deferred
benefit.
 Adjusted the merit component of the salary increase assumption.
The 2017 valuation implemented the following refinements as a result of an experience study dated
March 24, 2017:
 Decreased the inflation assumption from 3.00% to 2.60%.
 Decreased the assumed rate of interest on member accounts from 3.75% to 3.50% per
year.
 Decreased the discount rate from 7.50% to 7.00%.
 Decreased the wage growth assumption from 4.00% to 3.25%.
 Decreased the payroll growth assumption from 4.00% to 3.25%.
The 2014 valuation implemented the following refinements as a result of quadrennial experience study:
 Decreased the inflation assumption from 3.25 percent to 3.00 percent.
 Decreased the assumed rate of interest on member accounts from 4.00 percent to 3.75 percent
per year.
 Adjusted male mortality rates for retirees in the Regular membership group.
 Reduced retirement rates for sheriffs and deputies between the ages of 55 and 64.
 Moved from an open 30-year amortization period to a closed 30-year amortization period for the
UAL beginning June 30, 2014. Each year thereafter, changes in the UAL from plan experience
will be amortized on a separate closed 20-year period.
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City of LeClaire, Iowa
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2021

Workers'
Compensation

Road Use Tax
Assets
Cash and pooled investments
Receivables:
Property taxes
Accounts
Due from other governments
Due from other funds
Inventories
Prepaid items
Total assets

$

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Fund Balances (Deficits)
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Total liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources:
Unavailable revenue:
Property taxes
Other
Total deferred inflows of resources
Fund Balances (Deficits):
Nonspendable:
Inventories
Prepaid items
Restricted
Unassigned
Total fund balance (deficit)
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and fund balances (deficits)

31,954

$

63

-

$

19,436

464
58,895
49,928
604
141,845

571
571

1,854
10,012
31,302

5,766
5,766

28,073
28,073

1,651
1,651

-

-

-

49,928
604
85,547
136,079

$

Special Revenue
Employees'
Retirement
FICA/IPERS

141,845

(27,502)
(27,502)

$

571

29,651
29,651

$

31,302

Group
Insurance
$

$

Local Option
Sales Tax

Emergency

35,579

$

766

$

Total

166,108

$

253,843

1,723
81,439
118,741

49,433
50,199

192,564
28,073
386,745

51,858
2,187
251,459
119,524
49,928
604
729,403

10,012
10,012

-

-

5,766
1,651
38,085
45,502

-

49,174
49,174

140,438
140,438

49,174
140,438
189,612

108,729
108,729

1,025
1,025

246,307
246,307

49,928
604
471,259
(27,502)
494,289

118,741

$

50,199

$

386,745

$
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729,403

City of LeClaire, Iowa
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2021

Road Use Tax
Revenues:
Property taxes
Other taxes
Use of money and property
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

$

Expenditures:
Operating:
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Community and economic
development
General government
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over (under) expenditures
Other financing (uses):
Transfers (out)

Workers'
Compensation

559,073
4,831
563,904

$

$

65

$

139,078
2,435
73
1,390
142,976

42,160
15,228
2,079

86,976
30,898

543,069

41
661
60,169

375
28,441
146,690

20,835

(19,707)

-

2,756

Fund balances, beginning of year
Fund balances (deficit), end of year

39,077
614
350
421
40,462

543,069
-

(18,079)

Net change in fund balances

Special Revenue
Employees'
Retirement
FICA/IPERS

133,323
136,079

$

(3,714)

-

(19,707)

(3,714)

(7,795)
(27,502) $

33,365
29,651

Group
Insurance
$

237,665
5,951
349
2,375
28
17,530
263,898

$

44,367
960
49
439
45,815

$

Total

686,596
1,597
688,193

$

460,187
696,556
2,068
563,627
28
22,782
1,745,248

108,923
49,953

-

14,727
-

252,786
558,297
82,930

29,585
188,461

-

14,727

416
58,687
953,116

75,437

45,815

673,466

792,132

(58,213)

(45,185)

(549,654)

(671,131)

123,812

121,001

17,224
$

Local Option
Sales Tax

Emergency

91,505
108,729

630
$

395
1,025

$

122,495
246,307

$
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373,288
494,289

City of LeClaire, Iowa
Schedule of Revenues By Source And Expenditures By Function
All Governmental Funds
For the Last Ten Years

Modified Accrual Basis
2021
Revenues:
Property taxes
Tax increment financing
Other taxes
Licenses and permits
Use of money and property
Intergovernmental
Charges for service
Special assessments
Fines, Fees, and Miscellaneous
Total revenues
Expenditures:
Operating:
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Community and economic
development
General government
Debt service
Capital projects
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

$

$

$

$

2,370,837
3,515,220
963,292
17,998
74,313
844,911
486,359
684,817
8,957,747

1,000,966
945,610
412,334
1,803,350
658,371
9,397,596
2,013,871
16,232,098

2020
$

$

$

$
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2,292,765
3,521,299
905,090
23,377
701,614
698,908
410,710
2
131,337
8,685,102

991,056
929,843
423,365
1,823,102
574,190
2,903,877
3,363,498
11,008,931

2019
$

$

$

$

2,154,378
3,779,889
886,133
21,963
617,999
631,020
391,591
4
183,692
8,666,669

1,002,550
1,048,640
324,848
2,249,419
434,823
9,409,047
672,624
15,141,951

2018
$

$

$

$

1,667,400
4,578,542
883,969
18,359
196,470
655,744
358,570
3
146,644
8,505,701

976,082
959,623
401,830
2,600,233
395,392
3,513,537
448,895
9,295,592

Modified Accrual Basis
2017
$

$

$

$

1,582,320
4,378,921
928,318
13,978
122,700
664,174
384,002
4
120,407
8,194,824

888,699
810,097
368,972
2,506,417
327,314
8,470,319
230,784
165,080
13,767,682

2016
$

$

$

$

1,369,933
4,067,524
963,524
12,398
216,796
535,411
318,656
7
129,121
7,613,370

837,340
808,430
332,111
2,259,402
334,450
3,278,598
231,442
587,822
8,669,595

2015
$

$

$

$

1,306,376
3,790,417
945,376
13,589
88,770
481,423
314,699
41
128,464
7,069,155

873,608
787,628
330,396
2,040,641
300,276
2,922,517
770,244
184,159
8,209,469

2014
$

$

$

$

68

1,220,915
3,670,713
841,346
13,656
83,573
434,177
354,284
24
117,844
6,736,532

905,009
806,857
308,782
2,030,861
271,934
2,668,967
733,590
4,005,552
11,731,552

2013
$

$

$

$

1,285,394
3,543,299
819,131
12,156
97,008
640,275
294,448
37
112,700
6,930,629

939,497
655,540
303,037
2,231,447
263,216
5,152,273
1,351,015
288,827
11,184,852

2012
$

$

$

$

1,266,318
3,320,326
805,828
11,189
100,418
431,157
296,559
11
131,152
6,362,958

860,406
657,738
263,342
1,381,072
358,230
2,667,325
2,017,344
101,323
8,306,780

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance With Government Auditing Standards
To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of LeClaire, Iowa
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the City of LeClaire, Iowa (the City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements and have issued
our report thereon dated January 31, 2022.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the City’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may
exist that have not been identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. We did identify certain
deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Responses as
2021-001 through 2021-005 that we consider to be significant deficiencies.
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards. However, we noted certain immaterial instances of noncompliance or other matters which are described in Part II of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and
Responses.
Comments involving statutory and other legal matters about the City’s operations for the year ended June
30, 2021 are based exclusively on knowledge obtained from procedures performed during our audit of the
financial statements of the City. Since our audit was based on tests and samples, not all transactions that
might have had an impact on the comments were necessarily audited. The comments involving statutory
and other legal matters are not intended to constitute legal interpretations of those statutes.
City’s Response to Findings
The City’s response to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying Schedule of
Findings and Responses. The City’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Moline, Illinois
January 31, 2022
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City of LeClaire, Iowa
Schedule of Findings and Responses
Year Ended June 30, 2021
Summary of the Independent Auditor’s Results
Unmodified opinions were issued on the financial statements.
Part I: Summary of Findings Relating to the Basic Financial Statements

A. Internal Control
Significant Deficiencies:
2021-001
Finding: The City has insufficient segregation of duties over the utility billing and receipts process.
Condition: An employee that generates utility billing revenue has access to update utility rates, edit
accounts, edit usage, adjust customer accounts, and collect receipts. The employee collects
receipts, enters receipts into the cash receipting system and performs the daily cash receipt close
process. The employee prepares the bank deposit. In addition, another employee has administrative
rights to the financial system, posts and reconciles to the general ledger, has access to cash and
checks receipted and will occasionally collect receipts.
Context: A good internal control contemplates an adequate segregation of duties so that no one
individual handles a transaction from inception to its completion.
Effect: Misappropriations of assets or errors could occur and not be detected in a timely basis.
Cause: A limited number of personnel are involved in the utility billing and cash receipt function.
Recommendation: Ideally, any position responsible for processing utility billing with customer
account edit access should be segregated from collecting receipts. Any position responsible for
general ledger posting and reconciliation processes should be segregated from collecting receipts.
We recommend the City review current processes to determine if these positions could be removed
from collecting. Alternatively, we provide the following recommendations to strengthen the City’s
internal control system:
Overall:


One of the key control points is the detailed review of all revenue adjustments by the City Clerk.
In addition to reviewing revenue adjustments, the City Clerk should be performing a detailed
review on a daily basis of all voided receipts and follow up and formally document receipts that do
not have a corresponding correction posting.

Utility Billing:


We recommend the City Clerk specifically review any adjustments to the personal utility and
other receivable accounts of employees with billing and collecting access. We also recommend
the City investigate system generated edit reports whenever a change to usage or an account is
made. The edit reports should be reviewed by the City Clerk or City Administrator.



Monthly, a report of abnormal usage, no readings and zero usage is generated by the utility
billing process. We recommend these reports be detailed reviewed by an employee without
access to billing. The employee performing the review should document the follow up performed
on all customer accounts included in the reports. Another option is for the Public Works
department to detail review these reports, be responsible for follow up and communicate any
changes to the employee with billing access.

71

City of LeClaire, Iowa
Schedule of Findings and Responses
Year Ended June 30, 2021


Utility rates are entered by the employee with billing access. We recommend the City Clerk or
City Administrator review utility rates in the system when Council approves a rate change to
minimize risk of error.

Other Receipts:




We recommend the City Clerk perform all billing of other accounts receivable charges for
services. When the revenue is receipted, it should be receipted by the Administrative Assistant.
The remittance and supporting documentation should be routed to the City Clerk to compare to
the billing and ensure accounts receivable was properly relieved.
We recommend all collections, including Library, are receipted by the Administrative Assistant
when possible. The Administrative Assistant should be performing the daily cash count and close
and preparing the deposit.

Response and Corrective Action Plan: The City will review current processes and realign duties to
improve internal controls within the design of the utility billing and cash receipting process.
2021-002
Finding: The City has insufficient segregation of duties over the payroll process.
Condition: The Payroll Clerk has access rights to change the employee master file, including entering
new employees, employee information including address and direct deposit information, modifying
pay rates and adding deductions; enters time to the payroll system, process the payroll and generate
the payroll checks and direct deposits. The Payroll Clerk also submits the direct deposit to the
financial institution, prepares the payroll accounts payable and makes payroll transfers for deductions
and taxes. The Payroll clerk also has access to the electronic signatures and prints checks and mails
checks and distributes direct deposit advices.
In addition, the City Clerk has the same access rights to the payroll system, runs payroll in the Payroll
Clerk’s absence and reconciles the bank statement.
Context: A good internal control contemplates an adequate segregation of duties so that no one
individual handles a transaction form inception to its completion.
Effect: Misappropriations of assets could occur and not be detected in a timely basis.
Cause: A limited number of personnel are involved in the payroll function.
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City of LeClaire, Iowa
Schedule of Findings and Responses
Year Ended June 30, 2021
Recommendation: Ideally, the position responsible for processing the payroll should be segregated
from access to make employee master file changes.









The City should evaluate the payroll software to determine if password protections within
applications in regard to the master file could be limited to another position in office. This
position should have no other payroll access. This position would add all new positions,
including address, direct deposit information and benefits. In addition, this position should
make all updates and changes to the master payroll file.
After payroll is processed, a Direct Deposit Register should be generated by the Payroll Clerk
and routed to the City Administrator. The City Administrator should be notified by the bank
that the direct deposit file has been submitted. The City Administrator should compare the
amount submitted for the direct deposit ACH to the Direct Deposit Register and approve the
direct deposit ACH through the bank. In addition, the City Administrator should review the
payroll checks and direct deposit listing to look for any unknown employees and any unusual
pay amounts. The amount should also be compared to the prior payroll period and
investigate any unusual variances in the total amount paid from one pay period to the next
and compare totals to budget for any variances. The payroll access rights should be
removed from the City Administrator.
The City Administrator should review the bank reconciliation and ensure that all payroll ACH
match the ACH reports for the month.
The City should determine if a payroll change/edit report can be printed from the payroll
system. This report should list all changes made to the employee master files as well as
extra pays or leave time added for the pay period. The changes on this report should be
reviewed by a position independent from the payroll processing position.
Checks and Direct Deposit stubs should be sorted and mailed by someone independent of
the payroll process. Number sequence should be tracked for both checks and direct
deposits.

Response and Corrective Action Plan: The City will review current processes and realign duties
and system access levels to improve internal controls within the design of the payroll system.
2021-003
Finding: The City has insufficient segregation of duties over the cash disbursement function.
Condition: One position has the responsibility of setting up new vendors in the system, has purchase
access in the system, enters invoices into the system to be paid, prints checks, and reconciles the
bank statement. In addition, this position also prepares the file for the bank for positive pay services
and bills to be paid electronically.
Context: A good internal control contemplates an adequate segregation of duties so that no one
individual handles a transaction from inception to its completion.
Effect: Misappropriation of assets could occur and not be detected in a timely basis.
Cause: A limited number of personnel are involved in the cash disbursement function.
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Recommendation: In general, authorization of new vendors, entering invoices into the accounting
system, processing of checks and preparing the bank reconciliations should be segregated. We
recommend implementing the following controls to strengthen internal controls over disbursements:





The Master Vendor File access should be delegated to another position. That position would
obtain the IRS W-9 Form and complete vendor additions and any changes to vendors including
changes to addresses or information for electronic payment through the Bank. Also, this position
should not be able to create purchase orders.
We recommend removing that position as an authorized check signer.
The review of the positive pay file to check sequence and the review of the bank scans of checks
is an important control for the disbursements cycle.

Response and Corrective Action Plan: The City will review current processes and realign duties and
system access levels to improve internal controls within the design of the disbursement transaction
system.
2021-004
Finding: The City does not have a process to maintain capital asset subsidiary ledgers and compute
depreciation.
Condition: The City does not maintain a capital assets listing. The City does not have a process to
identify asset deletions and additions or to track construction in progress for self-constructed assets.
The City does not maintain depreciation schedules for assets owned by the City in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (GAAP).
Context: A properly designed system of internal control over financial reporting requires entities to
initiate, authorize, record, process and report financial data reliably in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Adjustments to record capital asset
additions and ending depreciation were required to be posted by the City as part of the year-end audit
process.
Effect: The City’s trial balances do not accurate reflect the capital asset ending balances.
Cause: The City has not implemented the capital asset module of the financial software and therefore,
has not maintained historical records of capital assets.
Recommendation: We recommend the City utilize the capital asset module the City already owns to
maintain capital assets efficiently and to compute annual depreciation. We recommend the City
develop and implement a systematic process to identifying asset additions and asset deletions
throughout the year.
Response and Corrective Action Plan: The City is will investigate maintaining capital asset ledgers and
depreciation within the current software.
2021-005
Finding: The City did not reconcile ending cash and investments as of June 30, 2021. In addition, the
City Administrator is not reviewing the bank reconciliations to ensure proper completion and resolution
of reconciling tiems.
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Condition: The cash and investments bank reconciliations as of June 30, 2021 presented for audit had
an unreconciled difference of approximately $15,400. The bank reconciliations for October 2020 and
January 2021 were not reviewed and formally approved by the City Administrator. Bank reconciliations
were not prepared on a timely basis during the fiscal year.
Context: Timely and accurate bank reconciliations are a key process to ensuring City transactions have
been properly recorded within the general ledger.
Effect: The City’s trial balances do not accurately reflect the cash and investment balances and
transactions may be unrecorded.
Cause: There has been significant turnover in City Administration.
Recommendation: We recommend the City Clerk prepare monthly bank reconciliations. We
recommend the City Administrator review the bank reconciliations on a monthly basis and sign the
reconciliations to document approval. We recommend the City Administrator track check sequence as
part of the monthly review process.
Response and Corrective Action Plan: The City prepare monthly bank reconciliations to be reviewed
and approved by the City Administrator. The City Administrator will track check sequence.

B. Instances of Noncompliance
No matters reported.
Part II: Other Findings Related to Statutory Reporting
II-A-21
Certified Budget –
Finding 1: The City overexpended the community and economic development functions ($3,412), the
debt service function ($109,505) and the business-type function ($721,378).
Recommendation: The certified budget should be amended in accordance with Chapter 24.0 of the Code
of Iowa before expenditures exceed budget.
Response and Corrective Action Plan: The City will amend future budget in sufficient amounts to ensure
certified budget is not exceeded.
Finding 2: The City exceeded their certified budget for the General Government expenditures functional
area prior to the budget amendment passed in May 2021.
Recommendation: The certified budget should be amended in accordance with Chapter 24.9 of the Code
of Iowa before expenditures are allowed to exceed the budget.
Response and Corrective Action Plan: The City will amend future budgets in sufficient amounts to ensure
the certified budget is not exceeded.
Conclusion: Response accepted.
II-B-21
Questionable Expenditures – No expenditures were noted that we believe may not meet the requirements
of public purpose as defined in an Attorney General’s opinion dated April 25, 2079.
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II-C-21
Travel Expenses – No expenditures of City money for travel expenses of spouses of City officials or
employees were noted. No travel advances to City officials or employees were noted.
II-D-21
Business Transactions – No business transactions between the City and City officials or employees were
noted except the following:

Official
Neil Vining

Transaction Description
CPR Class Instruction

Amount
$

150

II-E-21
Restricted Donor Activity- No transactions between the City and City officials or employees were noted.
II-F-21
Bond Coverage – Surety bond coverage of City officials and employees is in accordance with statutory
provisions. The amount of coverage should be reviewed annually to ensure that the coverage is adequate
for current operations.
II-G-21
Council Minutes – No transactions requiring Council approval which had not been approved by the
Council were noted.
II-H-21
Deposits and Investments – No instances of noncompliance with the deposit and investment provisions of
Chapter 12B and Chapter 12C of the Code of Iowa and the City’s investment policy were noted.
II-I-21
Urban Renewal Annual Report – The urban renewal annual report was properly approved and certified to
the Iowa Department of Management on or before December 1.
II-J-21
Payment of General Obligation Bonds- The City appears to be in compliance with Chapter 384.4 of the
Code of Iowa.
II-K-21
The following item was noted from completing the Office of Auditor of State required tests:
Finding 1: The City did not have a W-9 form for three vendors selected to test. We recommend the City
review current vendor documentation and require a W-9 to be provided.
Response and Corrective Action Plan: The City will review vendor documentation and require a W-9 to
be provided if no W-9 is currently on file.
Conclusion: Response accepted.
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Finding 2: The City did not submit the 1099 information for calendar year 2020 to the IRS. Vendors paid
more than $600 during calendar year 2020 were not issued a 1099.
Response and Corrective Action Plan: The City will review current processes to ensure 1099 IRS forms
are properly submitted to vendors and the IRS. The City has submitted the 2020 1099 IRS information to
the IRS in December 2021.
Conclusion: Response accepted.
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ENGINEERING SERVICES AGREEMENT
LECLAIRE, IOWA
US 67/CODY ROAD PHASE II STREETSCAPE
BETWEEN EWING AND CHESTNUT STREET
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES
THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this
day of
, 2022, by and
between the CITY OF LECLAIRE, IOWA, hereinafter referred to as the "Owner" or "City," party of
the first part, and VEENSTRA & KIMM, INC., a corporation organized and existing under the laws
of the State of Iowa, party of the second part, hereinafter referred to as the "Engineers,"
WITNESSETH: THAT WHEREAS, the City is now contemplating construction of certain US 67/Cody
Road Phase II Streetscape Between Ewing and Chestnut Street (see Attachment 1), hereinafter
referred to as the “Project”, and
WHEREAS, the City desires to retain the Engineers to provide complete engineering services on
the Project.
NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby agreed by and between the parties hereto that the City does
hereby retain and employ the Engineers to act for and represent it in engineering matters in the
Project. Such contract of employment shall be subject to the following terms, conditions, and
stipulations, to wit:
1. SCOPE OF PROJECT. It is understood and agreed that the Project will be funded with a
combination of Iowa (STBG) state and local funding. This scope of work includes all work
being completed by Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. and their subcontractor, SmithGroup. The
following shall be included in this agreement:
A.

Phase I – Confirmation of Preferred Streetscape/Parking Assessment/Public
Involvement/Preliminary Plans
(i) Review Phase I concepts from the grant application and Master Plan/Current
IADOT Sidewalk Plans
(ii) Public Involvement Kickoff Meeting/City and Landowners Public Meeting/Project
Status Follow Up
(iii) Parking Assessment
(iv) Topographic/Utility/Boundary Survey
(v) Preliminary Plans (25%) with cost estimates and IDOT submittal

B.

Phase II – Final Design/Special Provisions/Permitting/Bidding
(i) 50% Design, Special Provisions, Cost Estimate (Check Plans)
(ii) Final Design, Specifications, Cost Estimate
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(iii) Permits/Stormwater/IADOT Coordination
(iv) Temporary Easement Acquisition and Plats, Landowner Coordination
(v) Bidding
(vi) Quality Control/Quality Assurance
C.

Phase III – Construction Engineering Services
(i) Construction Administration
(ii) On-site Resident Review

2. DESIGN SURVEYS. The Engineers shall complete topographic and boundary surveys for
the design of Project. Existing survey pins will be used to establish baseline conditions.
Survey for ROW needs will be included in the ROW costs for acquisition in a separate
contract if required. At this time, it is believed that temporary construction easements
are all that will be required.
3. DESIGN CONFERENCES. The Engineers shall attend at least four such design conferences
with the Owner as may be necessary to make decisions as to the details of design of the
Project.
4. REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS. The design plans and specifications shall comply with the
requirements of all applicable regulatory agencies including, but not limited to, the City of
LeClaire, Iowa Department of Transportation, Iowa Department of Natural Resources and
the Statewide Urban Design And Specifications (SUDAS) standards.
5. PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS. The Engineers shall prepare such detailed plans and
specifications as are reasonably necessary and desirable for construction of the Project.
The plans and specifications set forth all the details required for the construction of the
improvements. The specifications will indicate the quality standards for the materials to
be used and will, in general, set forth the requirements of the City and the governmental
agencies as to the standards for workmanship. Two (2) sets of final plans and
specifications shall be submitted to the Owner along with an electronic copy.
6. ESTIMATE OF COST. The Engineers shall prepare an estimate of cost for the construction
contract. The estimate of cost shall be based on the Engineers' best knowledge at the
time of preparation of the estimate of cost. The Engineers shall not be responsible if the
construction contract awarded for Project varies from the Engineers' estimate of cost.
The Engineers shall advise and assist the City, if necessary, in adjusting the scope and
extent of Project, to allow Project to be constructed within available budget limitations.
7. ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS. The Engineers shall assist in the preparation of notice to
bidders and shall provide plans and specifications hard copy and electronically to the City
for contract letting.
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8. COSTS OF PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS. The Owner shall compensate the Engineers for
the actual costs of the plans and specifications provided contractors, plan rooms and
suppliers during Project bidding. The costs of plans shall be separate from the fee
provisions under "13. COMPENSATION".
9. BID OPENING AND AWARD OF CONTRACT. The Engineers shall provide services to assist
in the bid letting process, shall prepare a tabulation of bids for the Owner and shall advise
the Owner in making award of contract. After award of contract is made, the Engineers
shall assist in the preparation of the necessary contract documents. During the bidding
phase, the Engineers shall advise the Owner of the responsiveness of each proposal
submitted. The Engineers shall not be responsible for advising the Owner as to the
responsibleness of any bidder.
10. PRECONSTRUCTION CONFERENCE. The Engineers shall attend a preconstruction
conference following award of the construction contract. Said conference to be attended
by representatives of the Owner, the Engineers, Contractor, and utility companies
affected by Project. At this conference, a detailed construction schedule will be
determined. Additionally, a landowner’s meeting with the contractor will also be included
to ensure coordination of construction activities with the selected contactor.
11. GENERAL SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION. The Engineers shall provide general services
during construction including the following:
A. Consult with and advise Owner.
B. Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. will coordinate construction material testing (concrete and
asphalt) and compaction testing work.
C. Assist in interpretation of plans and specifications.
D. Review drawings and data of manufacturers.
E. Process and certify pay estimates of the Contractor to Owner.
F. Prepare and process necessary change orders or modifications to the construction
contract.
G. Make routine and special trips to the Project site as required.
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H. Make final reviews after construction contracts are completed to determine that the
construction complies with the plans and specifications, certify that the reviews were
made and that to the best of the knowledge and belief of the Engineers, the work on
the contracts has been substantially completed.
12. RESIDENT REVIEW SERVICES. Resident review services are understood to include the
detailed observation and review of the work of the Contractor and materials for
substantial compliance with the plans and specifications.
The Engineers shall provide resident review services by assigning resident engineers
and/or engineering technicians to the Project for such periods as may be reasonably
required to observe and review the construction work. The personnel assigned and the
period of such assignment shall be subject to the agreement of the parties hereto. It is
estimated the construction contract will require 1,890 hours of on-site review. This was
determined by assuming 40 hours per week for 9 months and 20 hours per week for 3
months.
13. COMPENSATION. The Owner shall compensate the Engineers for their services.
Attachment 2 shows the work breakdown structure and associated costs which includes
all SmithGroup fees. All engineering services fees are summarized below:
A. Phase I – Preferred Plan Confirmation (includes parking assessment and public
involvement) and Preliminary Plans. Services shall be hourly with a Not To Exceed cost
of One Hundred Four Thousand Six Hundred Twenty Nine Dollars ($104,629).
B. Phase II – Final Design Services – Includes IDOT Check Plans, Final plans and associated
NEPA requirements, public involvement, Temporary Easement Exhibits and
negotiation and bidding services. Services shall be hourly with a Not To Exceed cost of
Three Hundred Sixty Five Thousand Eight Hundred Twenty Four Dollars ($365,824).
C. Phase III – Construction Administration and On-site resident Review (inspection).
Services shall include all contract administration and on-site inspection per IADOT
guidelines. This also includes 1,890 hours of on-site inspection. Services shall be
hourly with a Not To Exceed fee of One Hundred Sixty Six Thousand Three Hundred
Twenty Three Dollars ($267,464).
D. The total fee for all engineering services for the Project shall be the rounded, Not-toExceed sum of Seven Hundred Thirty-Seven Thousand Nine Hundred Seventeen
Dollars ($737,917).
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E. The Owner shall compensate the Engineers for the cost of plans and distribution of

plans as set forth in "8. COSTS OF PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS" above as provided in
Senate File 2389. The reimbursement of the cost for plans and distribution of plans as
required under Senate File 2389 is not included in the fees for services set forth under
this Agreement.
14. PAYMENT. The fees shall be due and payable as follows:
A. For design, preparation of plans and specifications, and general services during
construction and final review, the fee shall be due and payable monthly based on that
proportion of the fee which the Engineers have completed as of the time of the
applicable billing.
15. LEGAL SERVICES. The Owner shall provide the services of the City Attorney in legal
matters pertaining to Project. The Engineers shall cooperate with said attorney and shall
comply with his requirements as to form of contract documents and procedures relative
to them.
16. SERVICES NOT INCLUDED. The above-stated fees do not include compensation for the
following items:
A. If, after the plans and specifications are completed and approved by the City, the
Engineers are required to change plans and specifications because of changes made
by the City, the Engineers shall receive additional compensation for such changes
which shall be based upon standard hourly fees plus expenses for personnel engaged
in performance of the work associated with making the required changes.
B. Soil testing and contaminated soil investigations are not included in this Agreement. If
required, Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. will develop a plan and acquire quotes to present to
the City.
C. Services related to or regarding arbitration or litigation of a construction contract
between a construction contractor and the City regarding Project.
D. Construction concrete and asphalt testing and compaction testing will be coordinated
by V&K, Inc. However, the contract will be part of the construction contract.
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17.

CHANGES AND EXTRA WORK. The above-stated fees cover the specific services as
outlined in this Agreement. If the City requires additional services of the Engineers in
connection with Project, the Engineers shall receive additional compensation for changes
which shall be based upon the standard hourly fees plus expenses of the personnel
engaged in the performance of the work. These rates will be revised and effective July 1,
2022 and will be provided at that time.
The method of compensation for authorized Extra Work shall be mutually agreed upon
between the City and Engineers at the time the work shall be authorized by the City.

18.

TIME OF COMPLETION. The City desires to initiate the Project improvements beginning in
March 2022 (see Attachment 3). The plans and specifications are to be completed by the
end of February 2024. Construction is planned to start in the spring of 2024 and be
complete by December 2024. Engineers shall proceed with their work according to this
schedule. The Engineers shall not be responsible for delays in approval or other actions by
governmental agencies which may delay the completion date.

19.

INDEMNIFICATION. The Engineers shall and hereby agree to hold and save the Owner
harmless from any and all claims, settlements, and judgments, to include all reasonable
investigative fees, attorneys' fees, suit and court costs for personal injury, property
damage, and/or death arising out of the Engineers' or any of its agents', servants', and
employees' errors, omissions or negligent acts for services under this Agreement, and for
all injury and/or death to any and all of the Engineers' personnel, agents, servants, and
employees occurring under the Workers' Compensation Act of the State of Iowa.

20. INSURANCE. The Engineers shall furnish the Owner with certificates of insurance by
insurance companies licensed to do business in the State of Iowa, upon which the Owner
is endorsed as an additional named insured, in the following limits. It must be clearly
disclosed on the face of the certificates that the coverage is on an occurrence basis.
General Liability*
Automobile Liability
Excess Liability (Umbrella)*
Workers' Compensation, Statutory Benefits Coverage B
Professional Liability**, ***
*Occurrence/Aggregate
**The Owner is not to be named as an additional insured.
***Claims made basis
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$1,000,000/2,000,000
$1,000,000
$8,000,000/8,000,000
$1,000,000
$2,000,000/2,000,000

21. TERMINATION' ShouId the Citvabandon Project before the Engineers have completed
theirwork′ the Engineers sha= be paid proportionatelv for the work and services

Performed unt吊he date oftermination.

22. ASSISTANTSAND CONSUL丁ANTS・ It is understood and agreed thatthe empioyment ofthe

Engineers bvthe Ownerforthe purposes aforesaid shail be exclusive, butthe Engineers
Sha帖ave the rightto empioy such assistants and consultants as thev deem proper in the

Performance ofthe work.

23. ASSIGNMENT. ThisAgreement and each and everv portion thereofsha= be binding upon
the successors and the assigns ofthe parties hereto.

The undersigned do herebv covenant and state thatthis Agreement is executed in dup=cate as
though each were an originai and thatthere are no oral agreements that have not been reduced

to writing in this instrument.

It is further covenanted and stated that there are no other considerations or monies contingent

upon or resuItingfrom the execution ofthisAgreement, nOr have anvofthe above been implied
by or for any partv to this Agreement.

IN WITNESSWHEREOF, the parties have hereunto subscribed their names on the date first
Written above.

CITY OF LECLAIRE, iOWA

A丁丁ES丁:

Mavo「

VEENSTRA& KiMM, iNC.

ATTEST:

ま̲」言ぐ㌻上之
P「oject ^牛三二
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WORK BREAKDOWN COST ESTIMATE

Task/Responsible Party

Attachment 2

# Hours Hourly Rate

Cost

PHASE I - Confirmation of Preferred Streetscape/Parking/
Public Involvement
A. Review Phase I Plans/Current IADOT Sidewalk Plans/
Master Plan/Concept Statement
Project Manager Engineer I-A

20

$

186.00 $

3,720.00

Project Engineer VI

20

$

106.00 $

2,120.00

SmithGroup - Public Involvment Specialist and
Landscape Architect

LS

$

2,500.00

SmithGroup - Public Involvment Specialist, Landscape
Architect and Parking Study (3 Meetings)

LS

$

15,000.00

Project Manager Engineer I-A

20

$

186.00 $

3,720.00

Project Engineer VI

20

$

106.00 $

2,120.00

Professional Land Surveyor I

32

$

127.00 $

4,064.00

Party Chief - Tech IV

160

$

77.00 $

12,320.00

Engineer X

40

$

83.00 $

3,320.00

GPS

160

$

30.00 $

4,800.00

Mileage

600

$

0.58 $

345.00

Project Manager Engineer I-A

20

$

186.00 $

3,720.00

Project Engineer VI

120

$

106.00 $

12,720.00

Hydraulic Engineer IV

40

$

121.00 $

4,840.00

Engineer X

80

$

83.00 $

6,640.00

Electrical/Mechanical Engineer III-A

20

$

134.00 $

2,680.00

SmithGroup - Concept Design and Landscape Treatment

LS

$

20,000.00

Preliminary Plan (25%) Subtotal

$

50,600.00

Phase I Subtotal Preliminary Engineering Services Cost Estimate

$

104,629.00

B. Public Involvement Kickoff Meeting/City & Land Owners Public
Kickoff Meeting/Project Status Follow Up

C. Topographic/Utility/Boundary Survey

D. Preliminary Plans (25%)
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PHASE II - Final Design/Special Provisions/Permitting/Bidding
A. 50% Design, Special Provisions, Cost Estimate (Check Plans)
Project Manager Engineer I-A

160

$

186.00 $

29,760.00

Project Engineer VI

280

$

106.00 $

29,680.00

Hydraulic Engineer IV

160

$

121.00 $

19,360.00

Structural Engineer I-C

160

$

167.00 $

26,720.00

Electrical/Mechincal Engineer III-A

120

$

134.00 $

16,080.00

Engineer X

270

$

83.00 $

22,410.00

Clerical IV

40

$

53.00 $

2,120.00

SmithGroup - Landscape Design

LS

$

20,000.00

B. Final Design, Specifications, Cost Estimate
Project Manager Engineer I-A

160

$

186.00 $

29,760.00

Project Engineer VI

270

$

106.00 $

28,620.00

Structural Engineer I-C

20

$

167.00 $

3,340.00

Electrical/Mechanical Engineer III-A

80

$

134.00 $

10,720.00

Engineer X

270

$

83.00 $

22,410.00

Clerical IV

40

$

53.00 $

2,120.00

SmithGroup - Landscape Design

LS

$

10,000.00

C. Permits/Stormwater/IADOT Coordination
Project Manager Engineer I-A

80

$

186.00 $

14,880.00

Project Engineer VI

40

$

106.00 $

4,240.00

Clerical

16

$

53.00 $

848.00

Project Manager Engineer I-A

80

$

186.00 $

14,880.00

Professional Land Surveyor I

40

$

123.00 $

4,920.00

Project Engineer VI

20

$

106.00 $

2,120.00

Clerical IV

20

$

53.00 $

1,060.00

Temporary Easement Documents

10

$ 1,500.00 $

15,000.00

D. Temporary Easement Acquisition and Plats,
Landowner Coordination

CITY OF LECLAIRE
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E. Bidding
Project Manager Engineer I-A

24

$

186.00 $

4,464.00

Project Engineer VII

40

$

101.00 $

4,040.00

Clerical IV

24

$

53.00 $

1,272.00

25% Design

1

$ 5,000.00 $

5,000.00

50% Design

1

$ 5,000.00 $

5,000.00

95% Design

1

$ 5,000.00 $

5,000.00

$

10,000.00

Phase II Subtotal Engineering Services Cost Estimate

$

365,824.00

Phase I & II (Design/ROW Services) Subtotal

$

470,453.00

F. Quality Control/Quality Assurance

G. Mileage/Travel/Misc.

PHASE III - Construction Engineering Services
A. Construction Administration
Pre-construction/Bi-monthly Progress Meetings/
Civil Shop Drawing Review/Pay Requests/Change Orders/
IADOT Documentation

LS

$

100,000.00

SmithGroup - Landscape Shop Drawing Review

LS

$

10,000.00

80.85 $

152,806.50

30 miles roundtrip x .575/mile x 270 days

$

4,657.50

Phase III Construction Engineering Subtotal

$

267,464.00

Phases I-III Engineering Services Cost Estimate (NTE)
(Total Engineering Services Cost)

$

737,917.00

B. On-site Resident Review
NTE Hourly Inspection - Assume 12 month construction
period - 9 months at 40 hrs/wk and 3 months at 20 hrs/wk

1,890.00 $

C. Mileage and Expenses

*See attached contract admin work breakdown spreadsheet

US 67/Cody Road Phase II Streetscape
Between Ewing and Chestnut Street
LeClaire, Iowa

2022
PROJECT

CONTRACTOR START DATE

2023

2024

END DATE Jan. Feb. Mar. April May June July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. Mar. April May June July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. Mar. April May June July Aug. Sept. Oct.Nov. Dec.

9

STBG Cody Road
Planning and
Preliminary DS

N/A

March 2022

December
2022

10

STBG Cody Road
Final DS and ROW

N/A

January
2023

February
2024

11

STBG Cody Road
Construction

N/A

March 2024

December
2024
Project Duration

Public Meeting

LECLAIRE, IOWA
TERRITORIAL ROAD BRIDGE PROJECTS
COST ESTIMATE
East Bridge
FED AID 01754
ENGINEERING COSTS:
Preliminary Design
Final Design
Total Design Services

West Bridge
State (SWAP) 01752

$
$
$

36,000
80,000
116,000

$
$
$

36,000
75,400
111,400

Right-of-Way Services

$

11,700

$

10,000

General Services
On Site Review and Testing
Construction Engineering Services

$
$
$

45,377
73,000
118,377

$
$
$

35,000
61,000
95,939

TOTAL ENGINEERING COST

$

246,077

$

217,339

ROW COST
LOW BID CONSTRUCTION COST

$
$

3
1,428,698

$
$

432
1,384,449

TOTAL PROJECT COST

$

1,674,778

$

1,602,220

Federal Funds 80% up to $1M
City Of LeClaire Funds

$
$

1,000,000
674,778

$
$

1,000,000
602,220

2020 G.O. Bonds
Needed

$
$

FUNDING/GO BOND REALLOCATIONS:
2020 GO Bonds - Phase II Design
(Move to 2023 GO Bond)
2020 GO Bonds - City Center Plaza
(Move to ARPA grant/future funding)
2020 GO Bonds - interest Earnings/TBD
(Interest income/other projects)

200,000
(474,778)

$
$

200,000
(402,220) $

(876,998)

$

395,000 $

395,000

$

350,000

$

350,000

$

124,778

$

7,220 $

131,998

$

474,778

$

402,220 $

876,998

City of LeClaire
Fiscal Year 2023 Budget
Committee of the Whole
February 22, 2022
Dennis Bockenstedt,
City Administrator

City Council FY2023 Budget Goals
 Maintain property tax rate
 Proposed property tax rate lower by $.19465 to $12.64166
per $1,000 of value

 Improve Police Officer retention
 Police Officer pay plan increase included

 Implement Fire staffing recommendations
 Fire Chief and Fire Captain positions included

 Enhance Economic Development and Tourism
Opportunities
 Enhanced tourism and promotion package included

City Council FY2023 Budget Goals
 Continue to develop Parks & Recreation programming
 Parks Master Plan study included

 Create General Fund and emergency reserves
 $400,000 of Cell Phone Signing Bonus to create General
Fund emergency reserve

 Use of one-time revenues to be determined
 Not utilized to balance budget or fund ongoing operations

Revenue Budget highlights
 Property Tax – Taxable valuation growth of 9.95% including TIF
valuation; reduced property tax rate $.19465
 Sales Tax – Budgeted revenue up 8%
 Hotel/Motel Tax – estimates up 29% (returned to pre-COVID
level)
 Road Use Tax – up 5% from FY21; will not cover annual
overlay/panel replacement program – CIP issue
 Sewer Charges – 3% rate increase budgeted
 Speed camera fine revenue – about $200,000 per month – use
to be determined by City Council
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Expenditure Budget highlights
 Police pay plan modifications (pay rate adjustments and
signing bonuses)
 Squad car and police body camera replacements included
 Fire Department full-time staffing (2 FT positions proposed)
 Employee wage increases (2.50%)
 Property & Liability Insurance increases (19%)
 Workers Comp Insurance increases (7%)
 Consumer Price Index up (7.29% thru Nov 2021)

FY2023 Budget Timeline
 January 31 - Department, Finance Committee meetings
 February 7 – Set public hearing for maximum property tax rate
 February 22 – Public hearing and approval of maximum
property tax rate
 March 7 – Set public hearing to adopt FY23 budget
 March 21 – Public hearing and adopt FY23 budget

One-time Revenues
 Cell tower signing bonus
 $590,000 available with no restricted purposes
 Proposed uses:
 $400,000 for General Fund emergency reserve
 $190,000 unassigned

One-time Revenues
 ARPA funding
 $590,879 Federal funding for COVID-19 projects
 Water, wastewater, and broadband automatically eligible
 Otherwise, must be COVID-19 related
 Proposed uses:
$376,000 – Wastewater Headworks Project
$214,879 – City Center Plaza Project

One-time Revenues
 Traffic enforcement camera revenues
 FY21 - $589,516
 FY22 (thru Feb 3) - $1,658,432
 Proposed Uses: Capital Projects and one-time uses as directed
by City Council
 Lower City debt burden
 Lower Debt Service Property Tax Rate
 Fund more capital projects, capital equipment replacement, and
economic development opportunities

